

# **JOB ORDER CONTRACTING SERVICES**

# Request for Proposal No. 14-2223

# **DECEMBER 2022**

Purchasing Services Department
On behalf of the
Capital Projects and Planning Department
2815 E. Garland
Spokane, WA 99207-5899
(509) 354-7174

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# A. RFP Award Time Line

# B. Advertisement For Job Order Contracting Firm

# C. Proposal Summary

- 1. Services Requested / Best Practices Manual Construction
- 2. <u>Optional Pre-Proposal Conference</u>
- 3. Proposal Receipt Dates and Times
- 4. <u>Proposal Receipt Location</u>
- 5. Opening and Award of the Job Order Contract
- 6. Prevailing Wage
- 7. <u>MWOB Enterprises Outreach</u>
- 8. Special Accommodations

#### **D.** Information for Respondents

- 1. RFP Intent
- 2. Owner Benefit
- 3. Unit Price Book
- 4. Contract Term
- 5. Contract Value
- 6. Job Order Limits
- 7. Non Pre-Priced Items
- 8. Legal Compliance
- 9. Proposal Requirements
- 10. Evaluation Committee
- 11. Bid Security
- 12. Notifications
- 13. MWBE Outreach Plan
- 14. Advertising Requirement
- 15. Minimum Qualification Requirements and Disqualification Criteria
- 16. Bid Protests
- 17. Public Records
- 18. Insurance
- 19. Document Submission
- 20. Contractor Certification
- 21. Work By Owner
- 22. RFP Inquiries

#### E. Proposal Requirements

- 1. Phase I Statement of Qualifications
- 2. Phase II Interview Selection
- 3. Phase III Cost Proposal

# F. Selection Criteria

- 1. Evaluation and Scoring Factors
- 2. <u>Scoring for Award Purposes</u>
- 3. Right to Reject Proposal

# G. Phase I - Statement of Qualifications Signature Submittal Forms

- 1. Company Information and Authorization Form
- 2. Respondent Certification Form

# H. Phase III - Cost Proposal Submittal Form

#### I. Contract

- 1. Articles
- 2. Contract Pricing Coefficients
- 3. <u>Scope of Services</u>

#### **EXHIBITS:**

- RFP Exhibit A Sample Letter of Invitation for a Firm Interview
- RFP Exhibit B SW Roster Approved Contractors
- RFP Exhibit C MWOB Listing for greater Spokane Area as identified on the omwbe.wa.gov website
- RFP Exhibit D Prevailing Wage Information
- RFP Exhibit E Sample Listing of twelve-month Annual Capital Projects
- RFP Exhibit F SPS Website Homepage Screen Print

# A. JOC RFP EVENT TIME LINE

1. Advertisements for RFP Friday, December 16, 2022

Friday, December 23, 2022

2. Deadline for Questions from Applicants Friday, January 20, 2023

3. Phase I – Statement of Qualifications Due Thursday, January 26, 2023

4. Phase II Interview Wednesday, February 15, 2023

5. Phase III Cost Proposals (Coefficients) Due Wednesday, February 22, 2023 at 1:00 P.M. PDT

6. Announce Apparent Successful Respondents Wednesday, February 22, 2023 immediately following the

Opening

7. Board Action March 8, 2023

8. Contract Signed & Returned by Contractor(s), Collect Payment and Performance Bond, Retainage Bond (if applicable) & Insurance Certificate Documents within 10 business days of Contract Issuance.

# B. ADVERTISEMENT FOR JOB ORDER CONTRACTING FIRM

# **SPOKANE PUBLIC SCHOOLS**

# Notice for Job Order Contracting Firms Request for Proposal No. 14-2223

Spokane Public Schools, Capital Projects and Planning Department invites public works contractors to submit proposals for a Job Order Contract (JOC) to provide construction services for minor construction, renovation, modernization and alteration projects.

- Submittals for Phase I due: 4:00 PM Pacific Standard Time, Thursday, January 26, 2023
- The Minimum Committed Amount to be contracted with the JOC is \$50,000
- The Maximum Contract Amount is \$4,000,000 per year, for a maximum of three (3) years.
- **The Unit Price Book** utilized is RS-MEANS, Facilities Construction Cost Data *the "then current" Western Edition*.
- **Prevailing Wages WAC 296-127 applies to this contract.** Prevailing wages for all work performed pursuant to a job order must be at the rates in effect at the time an individual job order is issued. Prevailing wage rates are available on the Department of Labor and Industries web site at: <a href="www.lni.wa.gov/prevailingwage">www.lni.wa.gov/prevailingwage</a>. The contractor shall pay all relevant filing fees.

Spokane Public Schools encourages the participation of Minority Owned and Woman Owned Business Enterprises in this Request for Proposal.

**Individuals with disabilities** who may need special accommodations to participate in the public bid opening meeting should contact Barb Carson, Purchasing Services, at (509) 354-7186 no later than three days before the scheduled date of the meeting so that arrangements for the modifications can be made.

NOTE: Spokane Public Schools made the determination that the use of Job Order Contracting will benefit the public by providing an effective means of reducing total lead-time and cost for the construction of public works projects for repair and renovation required at public facilities through the use of unit price books and Work Orders by eliminating time-consuming, costly aspects of traditional public works process.

\*\* The above referenced RFP will be available no later than December 22, 2022 on the districts website at: <a href="https://www.spokaneschools.org/Page/1035">https://www.spokaneschools.org/Page/1035</a> under Solicitations due January 26, 2023, RFP 14-2223 Job Order Contracting Services.

#### C. PROPOSAL SUMMARY

#### 1. SERVICES REQUESTED:

Spokane Public Schools requests proposals from contractors for a Job Order Contract (JOC) to provide construction services for minor construction, renovation, modernization, and alteration projects. The information necessary to submit a proposal is contained herein.

All services provided under this awarded contract shall conform to Spokane Public Schools Best Practices Manual – Construction 2019. This Manual will be available no later than December 22, 2022 on Spokane Public Schools Website: https://www.spokaneschools.org/Page/1035 under Solicitations due January 26, 2023, RFP 14-2223, Job Order Contracting Services.

#### 2. PROPOSAL AND INTERVIEW DATES AND TIMES:

Phase I: Statement of Qualifications Due Thursday, January 26, 2023 By 4:00 P.M. Pacific Standard Time

Phase II: Interviews Wednesday February 15, 2023

Phase III: Cost Proposal Due Wednesday, February 22, 2023 By 1:00 P.M. Pacific Standard Time

-

3. PROPOSAL RECEIPT LOCATION: Purchasing Services Department

ATTN: Barb Carson Spokane Public Schools 2815 E. Garland Spokane, WA 99207

#### 4. OPENING AND AWARD OF THE JOB ORDER CONTRACT:

Within 15 minutes of the time for receipt of Phase III Cost Proposals, the cost coefficients will be opened and read and immediately following, final scores shall be calculated and publicly read. The School Board will award the JOC to the contractor(s) submitting the highest scored final proposal(s), using the evaluation factors and the relative weight of the factors contained herein.

# 5. PREVAILING WAGE:

WAC 296-127. Prevailing Wage, applies to this contract and the contractor shall pay all fees with each Statement of Intent and/or Affidavit of Wages Paid to the Department of Labor and Industries. Prevailing wages for all work performed pursuant to a job order must be at the rates in effect at the time an individual Job Order is issued. Prevailing wage rates are available on the Department of Labor and Industries web site at: <a href="https://www.lni.wa.gov/prevailingwage">www.lni.wa.gov/prevailingwage</a>.

#### 6. MWOB ENTERPRISES OUTREACH:

Spokane Public Schools encourages the participation of Minority Owned and Woman Owned Business Enterprises in this Request for Proposal.

# 7. SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS:

Individuals with disabilities who may need special accommodations to participate in the public bid opening meeting should contact Barb Carson, Purchasing Services at (509) -354-7186 no later than three days before the scheduled date of the meeting so that arrangements for the modifications can be made.

# D. INFORMATION FOR RESPONDENTS

#### 1. RFP INTENT:

Spokane Public Schools intends to procure one or more Job Order Contracts (JOC) to provide indefinite delivery, indefinite quantity construction services for minor construction, renovation, modernization, and alteration projects for schools, administrative, sports, and other facilities located in Spokane, Washington and other areas as defined in these Contract Documents. These services will be priced based upon a coefficient multiplier (e.g. .95 or 1.10) applied to pre-described and pre-priced tasks contained in the Unit Price Book (UPB).

#### 2. OWNER BENEFIT:

Spokane Public Schools made the determination the use of Job Order Contracting will benefit the public by providing an effective means of reducing total lead-time and cost for the construction of public works projects for repair and renovation required at public facilities through the use of unit price books and Work Orders by eliminating time-consuming, costly aspects of the traditional public works process.

#### 3. UNIT PRICE BOOK:

The Unit Price Book (UPB) for this contract shall be the current edition of the RS MEANS *Facilities* Construction Cost Data publication. The Spokane, Washington Weighted Average City Cost Index and the prices in the "Total, incl. O & P" column will be used. The total value of the applicable line items and their quantities will be multiplied by the City Cost Index and the designated coefficient to determine the lump sum cost of Job Orders. The "then current" version of RS MEANS *Facilities* Construction Cost Data will apply upon execution of any Job Order.

# 4. CONTRACT TERM:

- a) BASE TERM: The base term of the contract is **two** years, with the option of extending or renewing the contract for one additional year if mutually agreed to by Spokane Public Schools and the contractor.
- b) RENEWAL / EXTENSION: Spokane Public Schools shall provide written notice of intent to exercise the contract extension option before the expiration of the two year contract. The contractor will be presumed to mutually agree to the exercise of the extension option, unless the contractor notifies Spokane Public Schools otherwise in writing within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of Spokane Public Schools' notice to exercise. Cost coefficients in place during the base term of the contract will remain in place for the extension term.

#### 5. CONTRACT VALUE:

- a) The minimum guaranteed value of the base term, and the optional term, if exercised, is \$50,000 per contract, per contract term. **NO VALUE ABOVE THE MINIMUM VALUE IS GUARANTEED.**
- **b)** The maximum dollar amount for the Job Order Contract shall not exceed \$4,000,000 per year of the contract, for a maximum of three (3) years.
- c) Job Orders issued for a particular project may not exceed in total five hundred thousand dollars (\$500,000).
- **d**) No more than twenty percent (20%) of the dollar value of the Job Order may consist of items of work not contained in the unit price book.
- e) At least ninety percent (90%) of the work contained in a Job Order Contract must be subcontracted by the contractor to entities other than the contractor.
- f) If Spokane Public Schools fails to issue \$50,000 in job orders in either the base term or the extension term, the contractor's sole remedy is an amount equal to the difference between \$50,000 and the actual total of the job orders issued.

#### 6. JOB ORDER LIMITS:

- a) All Job Orders issued for the same project will be treated as a single Job Order for purposes of the five hundred thousand dollar (\$500,000) limit on Job Orders in subsection 5 c (above).
- **b)** Any new permanent, enclosed building space constructed under a Job Order will not exceed three thousand (3,000) gross square feet.
- c) For purposes of chapters 39.08 (Contractor's Bond), 39.12 (Prevailing Wages on Public Works), 39.76 (Interest on Unpaid Public Contracts), and 60.28 RCW (Lien for Labor, Materials, Taxes on Public Works), each Job Order issued will be treated as a separate contract. The alternate filing provisions of RCW 39.12.040(2) (Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages, Affidavit of Wages Paid) will apply to each Job Order that otherwise meets the eligibility requirements of RCW 39.12.040(2).
- **d**) The contractor will not be required to accept any Job Orders below \$2,000 or above \$500,000.
- e) Any work order over three hundred fifty thousand dollars, excluding Washington state sales and use tax, and including over six hundred single trade hours shall utilize a state registered apprenticeship program for that single trade in accordance with RCW 39.04.320

#### 7. NON PRE-PRICED ITEMS:

Items that cannot be found in the Unit Price Book are considered "non pre-priced". If an item basically the same in "form, fit, and function" can be found in the price book, it can be used to price the line item, if appropriate rationale and documentation is provided in the final line item proposal. If a like item cannot be found, the contractor will obtain three quotes and provide them to the Spokane Public Schools representative, who will negotiate an equitable price with the contractor. Once negotiated, this price can be added to the Unit Price Book and will no longer be considered non prepriced.

#### 8. LEGAL COMPLIANCE:

All current national, state and local codes will apply to the work done under this contract.

#### 9. PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS:

See Paragraph E.

# 10. EVALUATION COMMITTEE:

Spokane Public Schools has delegated the evaluation of proposals received for this solicitation to an Evaluation Committee.

# 11. BID SECURITY:

Phase III Cost Proposal submission shall be accompanied by a bid security in the form of a certified or bank cashier's check payable to Spokane Public Schools or a bid bond executed by a bonding company licensed in the State of Washington on a Public Works Bond or equivalent form, equal to twenty five thousand dollars (\$25,000). The bid security constitutes a pledge that the contractor will enter into a Contract with Spokane Public Schools in the form provided, in a timely manner, and on the terms stated in its Bid and will furnish in a timely manner the payment and performance bonds, certificates of insurance and all other documents required by the Contract Documents. Should the contractor fail or refuse to enter into the Contract or fail to furnish such documents, the amount of the bid security shall be forfeited to the Spokane Public Schools as liquidated damages, not as a penalty.

#### 12. NOTIFICATIONS:

- a) If the contractor is notified by telephone, facsimile or email communication that it has been selected to participate in the Phase II Interview, the contractor agrees to be available for an interview at a time to be determined on Wednesday, February 15, 2023. <u>Persons with whom Spokane Public Schools will be working most closely for the</u> duration of the contract should be at the interview.
- b) If the Contractor's interview scoring is competitive with the other applicants, the Contractor will be asked to

- submit their Phase III Cost Proposal.
- c) If the contractor is notified by telephone, facsimile or e-mail communication on the date that bids are received, the respondent agrees to be available for contract processing in Spokane, WA with Spokane Public Schools on the following day.

#### 13. MWBE OUTREACH PLAN:

If awarded the contract, the successful contractor will not be issued any work orders until the contractor provides to Spokane Public Schools an approved plan, developed in consultation with the office of minority and women's business enterprises or the equivalent local agency, that equitably spreads certified women and minority business enterprise subcontracting opportunities, to the extent permitted by the Washington state civil rights act, RCW 49.60.400, among the various subcontract disciplines.

#### 14. ADVERTISING REQUIREMENT:

If awarded the contract, the successful contractor is required to publish notification of intent to perform public works projects at the beginning of each contract year in a statewide publication and in a legal newspaper of general circulation in Spokane County. Contractor shall provide Spokane Public Schools with Affidavits evidencing this requirement.

#### 15. MINIMUM QUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS AND DISQUALIFICATION CRITERIA:

To present proposals under this RFP, a contractor must meet the following minimum qualifications:

- a) Possession of a Washington State Contractor's License
- **b**) Ability to bond with an A.M. Best Rated Company A or better (as evidenced by a letter from the surety).
- c) Ability to provide the required insurance (as evidenced by a certificate of insurance).

Any contractor submitting a proposal that does not evidence an ability to meet these minimum requirements shall be disqualified. In addition, any contractor deemed to have misrepresented information contained within its written proposal or presented during its oral interview shall be disqualified.

#### 16. BID PROTESTS:

All bidders shall have ten (10) business days following the opening of Phase III Cost Proposal Submissions to file a bid protest. Bid protests must be in the form of a detailed written statement of the grounds for the protest and must be filed with Spokane Public Schools in that ten (10) business day period. Failure to submit a bid protest within ten (10) business days following the opening of Phase III Cost Proposal Submissions constitutes a waiver of the bidders right to protest the bid. Spokane Public Schools will promptly make a determination on the merits of the protest and provide to all bidders a written decision of denial or acceptance of the protest. Spokane Public Schools will not execute the contract until two business days following its decision on a bid protest.

#### 17. PUBLIC RECORDS:

Except as provided below, all proposals submitted by the contractors shall be open to the inspection of any interested person, firm, or corporation in accordance with RCW 39.10.100 and chapter 42.17 RCW.

Trade secrets, as defined in RCW 19.108.010, or other proprietary information submitted by a bidder, offeror, or contractor in connection with an alternative public works transaction under this chapter shall not be subject to chapter 42.17 RCW if the bidder, offeror, or contractor specifically states in writing the reasons why protection is necessary, and identifies the data or materials to be protected.

#### 18. INSURANCE:

The contractor will maintain, at its expense, adequate insurance coverage to protect it from claims arising under the Workers Compensation Act, from claims for damages resulting from bodily injuries and damage to the property of others, and from claims for damages resulting from the operation of motor vehicles.

# Minimum Insurance Requirements as contained within the enclosed General Terms and Conditions

#### 19. DOCUMENT SUBMISSION:

A list of sub-contractors, a payment and performance bond, retainage bond (if applicable) and evidence of insurance shall be submitted within ten (10) days of the issuance of the Intent to Award the Job Order Contract. (NOTE - Any future modification to the list of sub-contractors shall be submitted to the Spokane Public Schools Project Manager within 72 hours of the change in subcontractor.) At least 90% of the work contained in a Job Order Contract must be subcontracted to entities other than the Job Order Contractor.

Performance and Payment Bond Requirements as contained within the enclosed General Terms and Conditions

# 20. CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION:

In signing a proposal, a contractor certifies that the proposal is being made without any previous understanding, agreement, or connection with any person, firm, or corporation making a proposal for the same materials, supplies, equipment, and/or services, and is in all respects fair and without collusion and fraud.

#### 21. WORK BY OWNER:

Owner reserves the right to undertake or award Contracts for the performance of the same or similar type work contemplated herein, and to do so will not breach or otherwise violate the Contract.

### 22. RFP INQUIRIES:

Requests for additional information or clarification of specifications should be directed in writing to: Barb Carson, Purchasing Services Spokane Public Schools, 2815 E. Garland, Spokane, Washington 99207. barbca@spokaneschools.org

NOTE: INFORMATION OBTAINED FROM ANY SECTION OF THE PROPOSAL, OR ANY OTHER RELEVANT SOURCE, MAY BE USED IN EVALUATION.

# E. PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

# 1. PHASE I - STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS: (Total of 100 points)

The Phase I Statement of Qualifications should be placed in a 3-ring D binder, securely wrapped or packaged, and marked: "Job Order Contract, RFP 14-2223." The name of the contractor shall be clearly displayed on the binder cover.

Each contractor shall submit THREE (3) copies of its entire proposal.

#### a) Letter of Introduction and Intent. (5 points)

This letter shall introduce the company or partnership to the school district and describe the Respondent's intent and desire in submitting this proposal.

#### b) Company Information. (50 points)

The contractor shall address all items described as follows:

- 1) Overview of the organizational structure of the contractor
- 2) Job title, brief description of the responsibilities of the key personnel that will manage the Job Order Contract, and resume of each key personnel member
- 3) Location of the contractor:
  - (a) Identify and give the location of contractor's local office. If no local office, describe how the contractor will provide for this need.
  - (b) Describe where the contractor's project management staff is from and whether they will live within 30 miles of the city of Spokane. If not, describe where they will be located
- 4) Description of contractor's company philosophy regarding management of the Job Order Contract, and on interacting with, and partnering with, an owner in a Job Order Contract environment.
- 5) Contractor's plan for managing the Job Order Contract, including the following:
  - (a) How and within how many days the contractor will respond to a Request for Job Order Proposal.
  - (b) How and within how many days the contractor will prepare Job Order documentation, including plans, scope of work, trades packages, construction details, and estimating information.
  - (c) How will the contractor provide on-site supervision of individual Job Orders
  - (d) Managing multiple projects simultaneously.
  - (e) Managing multiple subcontractors.
  - (f) Partnering as a member of a team consisting of the client, its customers, the contractor, and the contractor's employees and subcontractors.
  - (g) Description of the contractor's turn-over packages and close-out procedures
- 6) Contractor's plan for communication procedures with Spokane Public Schools, customers, and subcontractors
- 7) Description of contractor's quality control procedures
- 8) Description of contractor's Safety Procedures / L&I Accident Prevention Program
- 9) Description of contractor's current workload and projected work load for the following three years
- 10) Contractor's plan for identifying, selecting, and managing subcontractors, including a list of proposed subcontractors
- 11) Contractor's outreach plan for small, minority, and woman owned business businesses, to the extent permitted by the Washington State Civil Rights Act RCW 49.60.400
- 12) Contractor's contingency plan for unsatisfactory subcontract work

#### c) Past Performance. (20 points)

List the three most relevant contracts completed within the last three (3) years, or currently in progress, involving the use of multiple subcontractors or multiple projects for the northwestern geographic area of the United States. The following information should be provided on each contract:

- (1) Owner name and location of contract
- (2) Project description and total value of work done
- (3) Start date and completion date
- (4) Names of major subcontractors, if applicable
- (5) Small business or Minority and Woman Owned Business goals for the contracts, if applicable, the efforts made to achieve the goals, and whether the goals were achieved
- (6) JOC and other delivery method of construction services provided

#### d) Claims and Change Orders. (15 points)

List of all claims and the total of all change orders for each project referenced above, to include the following information:

- (1) Total amount of claim(s) requested by contractor on project
- (2) Total amount paid by owner for claims on project
- (3) Total amount of all change orders paid by owner on project
- (4) Change orders as a percentage of original bid amount

# e) Safety Information. (10 points)

Safety information for the last three years, to include the following:

- (1) 3 years records L&I/OSHA Worker Comp MOD Factor
- (2) OSHA 300 Annual Summary
- (3) List of OSHA/WISHA/EPA Citations received within the past three (3) years

#### f) Company Information and Authorization Form (RFP Page 16)

g) Respondent Certifications (RFP Page 17)

# 2. PHASE II - INTERVIEW: (Total of 100 points)

#### a) Selection of Most Qualified Finalists

- 1. The Evaluation Committee will review all responsive Phase I Statement of Qualifications submissions and will assign scores to each submittal. These scores shall be based on the points available.
- 2. Based on the scores, the Evaluation Committee will determine a competitive range of the most qualified finalists based on the contractors receiving the highest scores.

#### b) Interview Process

- 1. Contractors within the competitive range will be invited to participate in an interview and shall be notified by telephone or facsimile or email communication of the time for their interview.
- 2. The contractor agrees to be available for an interview as delineated in paragraph D.12, "Information for Respondents, Notifications" section of this document.
- 3. Persons with whom Spokane Public Schools will be working most closely for the duration of the contract should be at the interview, no more than four.

# 3. PHASE III – COST PROPOSAL: (Total of 50 points)

- 1. The Phase III Cost Proposal form is located on Page 17 of this RFP.
- 2. The Cost Proposal shall only be submitted by contractors invited to participate in the Phase III process. Contractors are not to spend appreciable time on the Cost Proposal until notified by Spokane Public Schools that they have been selected for Phase III consideration.
- 3. If the contractor is notified by telephone, facsimile or email communication on the date that Cost Proposal are received, the contractor agrees to be available for contract negotiations with Spokane Public Schools on the following day.
- 4. The Cost Proposal, shall consist of the contractor's cost coefficient "multiplier" for both normal hours (M F, 7 AM to 5 PM) and "other" hours (any times other than normal hours when the Spokane Public Schools directs the contractor to work).
- All services provided under this awarded contract shall conform to Spokane Public Schools Best Practices Manual 2019 – Construction. This Manual can be found on Spokane Public Schools Wesbite: https://www.spokaneschools.org/Page/1035 under Solicitations due January, 2023, RFP 14-2223 Job Order Contracting Services.
  - (a) It is anticipated FOR EVALUATION PURPOSES ONLY that 80% of the first 12 months work will be performed during standard hours and 20% of the work will be performed during non-standard hours.
  - (b) The contractor shall include with its Cost Proposal the rationale it used in computing the coefficients as well as the following: It should show how the contractor computed the cost of doing the work and the various elements that made up each coefficient, to include profit, overhead, materials, equipment, labor and burden, contingencies, etc. Show the values used and the computations.
  - (c) Remember that the bid coefficients must include all costs other than those contained in the pre-priced unit prices, including, but not be limited to: direct cost of doing the work; materials, labor burden; overhead; profit; project office expenses; mobilization and close-out costs; bonding costs; insurance; compliance with environmental laws; protective clothing and equipment; traffic and work site barriers; computer equipment and software; vehicles, maintenance, and fuel; testing; and all contingencies in connection with performing the work. NO ADDITIONAL PAYMENT WILL BE ALLOWED FOR ANY OF THESE ITEMS.
    - i) Line Items in Division 1 of the Unit Price Book may not be used for the pricing of Job Order, as these items are to be included in the contractor's coefficients. Specific exceptions may be individually authorized if the Spokane Public Schools has an unusual requirement.
    - ii) Spokane Public Schools will obtain all zoning and variances. The contractor is responsible for obtaining all required permits. However, Spokane Public Schools will pay permitting office directly for all permits, therefore do not include the cost of permits in your coefficient.
- 6. Other requirements for the Cost Proposal:
  - (a) The Cost Proposal must be signed by an officer of the contractor.
  - (b) The Cost Proposal must be sealed in a 9 x 12 envelope. Clearly label the envelope as follows: "Job Order Contract, RFP 14-2223. Phase III Cost Proposal." The name of the contractor shall be clearly displayed on the label.
  - (c) The Cost Proposal must be accompanied by a Bid Security equal to twenty five thousand dollars (\$25,000), as defined in number 12 under Information to Respondents.
- The Cost Proposal shall be submitted no later than 1:00 P.M. PST, WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 22, 2023to: Spokane Public Schools Purchasing Services Department, 2815 E. Garland, Spokane, WA 99207

# F. SELECTION CRITERIA

#### 1. EVALUATION AND SCORING FACTORS:

Scoring shall be the summation of Phase I, Phase II and Phase III evaluation and calculation results.

#### 2. SCORING FOR AWARD PURPOSES:

The Final Score (FS) will be computed by adding the Phase I, Phase II and Phase III Competitive Pricing Score (CPS). The Average Weighted Coefficient (AWC) is the sum of the Standard Coefficient (SC) cost proposal multiplied by 80% and the Non-Standard Coefficient (NSC) cost proposal multiplied by 20%. The contract will be awarded to the contractor with the highest Final Score that submitted responsive proposals.

# The final scoring formula for each firm interviewed and proceeding to Phase III shall be:

Final Score (FS) = Phase I Statement of Work Score + Phase II Interview Score + Phase III Competitive Pricing Score (CPS)

The maximum possible points for each Phase is as follows:

Phase I: 100 pts Phase II: 100 pts Phase III: 50 pts

The Phase III Competitive Pricing Score (CPS) = calculated value as outlined in example below.

An example of the calculation of the Competitive Pricing Score (CPS) for three companies, based on a potential project value of \$350,000:

Where:

AWC = (SC x 80%) + (NSC x 20%) Y (formula process value) = \$350,000 divided by AWC CPS = (Y divided by Ymax of all applicants) x 50 pts

**Applicant Submitted Coefficients** 

Company	Standard (SC)	Non Standard (NSC)	Calculated AWC	Calculated Y	Y / Ymax	CPS Score
Α	0.7800	0.7800	0.7800	448,718	1.0000	50
В	0.8350	0.8350	0.8350	419,162	0.9341	47
С	1.2560	1.2940	1.2636	276,986	0.6173	31

# 3. RIGHT TO REJECT PROPOSAL:

Spokane Public Schools reserves the right to reject any or all proposals in whole or in part, to waive technical defects, irregularities, and omissions if in its judgment the best interest of the school district will be served.

Fax: 509-354-7183

# G. PHASE I - STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS SIGNATURE FORMS

#### 1. COMPANY INFORMATION AND AUTHORIZATION FORM:

Pursuant to and in compliance with RFP 14-2223 hereinafter referred to as the Contract Documents for: REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR JOB ORDER CONTRACT SERVICES at Spokane Public Schools; the undersigned, having become thoroughly familiar with the terms and conditions of this document and with the local conditions which may affect performance and costs, hereby proposes and agrees to furnish all services, labor, equipment, and materials required to fulfill the intent of this agreement in accordance with this document as interpreted by Spokane Public Schools hereinafter referred to as the Owner. The Respondent hereby designates as his office to which correspondence shall be delivered.

Receipt of Addenda numbered is hereby	y acknowledged (fill in number of each addenda rece	eived)
Company Name	EIN/SSN	
Name of Authorized Agent (PRINTED)	Signature (IN INK)	
Address		
Telephone Number	FAX Number	
Date	F-mail Address	

**PART II:** 

# 2. RESPONDENT CERTIFICATION FORM

# PART I: STATEMENT REGARDING EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

We hereby certify that we have made a conscientious effort to comply with federal, state and local equal employment opportunity requirements in quoting this project and we will make the same efforts in fulfilling the requirements if awarded the Contract.

same errorts in running the requirements if awarded the Contract.
We further designate
Name
Title
Telephone Number
as the person who has been charged with the responsibility for securing compliance with and
reporting progress on affirmative efforts.
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND
VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION
In submitting the proposal to do the work as outlined in the Contract Specifications, we hereby
certify that we have not been suspended or in any way are excluded from Federal procurement
actions by any Federal agency. We fully understand that, if information contrary to this
certification subsequently becomes available, such evidence may be grounds for non-award or
nullification of the Contract.
This certification is required by the regulations implementing Executive Order 12549,
Debarment and Suspension, Participant's responsibilities.
Signed
Title
Firm
Address
City & State
Date

# H. PHASE III - COST PROPOSAL FORM

# Not later than 1:00 P.M. PDT, Wednesday, February 22, 2023

The undersigned, having read all the requirements of this solicitation for proposals, together with the RFP dated December, 2022 agree to furnish all labor, materials, and construction management specified herein necessary to complete the work as follows:

(A)	First Year, Not to exceed Contract	=	\$ <u>4,</u>	000,000		
(B)	Minimum Committed Contract Amount	=	\$	50,000		
(C)	Enter Coefficients FOR EVALUATION PURPOSES ONLY, it is anticipated that 80% of the standard (M – F, 7 AM – 5 PM) and 20% during non-standard (all "other"			-	erformed duri	ng
	a. Standard Coefficient (normal working hours: M – F, 7 AM – 5 PM)				=	-
	b. Non-Standard Coefficient (non-standard working hours: all "other" hours) =					
	Enclosed herewith is the rationale used in computing the coefficients as re	equ	ire	d in the RFF	2.	
	Note: These coefficients apply to base term and any extension/renewal thereo	of.				

#### PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE

Subject to other provisions, the period of performance of this contract shall commence upon the written approval of the District's contracting officer and shall continue for an initial contract term of not to exceed two years from the full execution date of the contract, with the option of extending or renewing the contract for one additional year, unless modified and approved by both parties, or terminated for cause by the Owner.

# **LIQUIDATED DAMAGES**

The contractor shall coordinate with the Owner to develop an acceptable schedule for the Work under each Job Order and shall be required to adhere strictly to the performance schedule established in each Job Order. The Owner retains the option to establish Liquidated Damages for any Job Order.

#### ADDENDUM RECEIPT

Receipt of the following addenda to the	is RFP solicitation is ack	nowledged:	
Addendum No.	Date		
Authorized Signature		Email Address	
Printed Name and Title		Phone Number	Fax Number
Date		Contractor Number	/ UBI Number

**CONTRACT** 

between

SPOKANE PUBLIC SCHOOLS

and

For

JOB ORDER CONTRACTING

Fax: 509-354-7183

# I. CONTRACT

ARTICLE NO.

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

ARTICLE 1	DEFINITIONS
ARTICLE 2	WORK TO BE PERFORMED
ARTICLE 3	JOB ORDERS
ARTICLE 4	SPECIFICATIONS AND DRAWINGS
ARTICLE 5	USE OF SPECIFICATIONS AND DRAWINGS
ARTICLE 6	PERMITS AND RESPONSIBILITIES
ARTICLE 7	MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP
ARTICLE 8	TESTING OF MATERIALS
ARTICLE 9	LAYOUT OF WORK
ARTICLE 10	SITE INVESTIGATION AND CONDITIONS AFFECTING THE WORK
ARTICLE 11	DIFFERING SITE CONDITIONS
ARTICLE 12	CONTRACT TERM
ARTICLE 13	COMPENSATION
ARTICLE 14	INVOICING AND PAYMENTS
ARTICLE 15	CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE
ARTICLE 16	SUPERINTENDENCE BY JOB ORDER CONTRACTOR
ARTICLE 17	INSPECTION OF CONSTRUCTION AND ACCEPTANCE
ARTICLE 18	OPERATIONS AND STORAGE AREAS
ARTICLE 19	PROTECTION OF EXISTING VEGETATION, STRUCTURES, UTILITIES AND IMPROVEMENTS

ARTICLE 20 CLEANING UP AND REFUSE DISPOSAL

Telephone: 509-354-7186

ARTICLE 21	WARRANTY OF CONSTRUCTION
ARTICLE 22	CHANGES
ARTICLE 23	PRICING CHANGES
ARTICLE 24	SUSPENSION OF WORK
ARTICLE 25	DISPUTES
ARTICLE 26	TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE OF OWNER
ARTICLE 27	DEFAULT
ARTICLE 28	SAFETY
ARTICLE 29	USE AND POSSESSION PRIOR TO COMPLETION
ARTICLE 30	OTHER CONTRACTS
ARTICLE 31	DISSEMINATION OF CONTRACT INFORMATION
ARTICLE 32	PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BONDS
ARTICLE 33	RETAINAGE BOND / RETAINAGE ACCOUNT
ARTICLE 34	INSURANCE
ARTICLE 35	INDEMNIFICATION
ARTICLE 36	CONTRACT ORDER OF PRECEDENCE
ARTICLE 37	NOTICES
ARTICLE 38	SEVERABILITY
ARTICLE 39	WAIVERS
ARTICLE 40	MERGER
ARTICLE 41	NON-AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS
ARTICLE 42	AUDIT OF RECORDS
ARTICLE 43	NON-DISCRIMINATION

E-mail: barbca@spokaneschools.org

Fax: 509-354-7183

# I. CONTRACT

ARTICLE 44	THIRD PART	Y ANTITRUST '	VIOLATIONS

ARTICLE 45 INTERPRETATION, JURISDICTION AND VENUE

- 2. <u>CONTRACT PRICING COEFFICIENTS</u>
- 3. SCOPE OF SERVICES

# JOB ORDER CONTRACTING CONTRACT

	•	of, 2023 by and between SCHOOL
Owner) and	•	gton municipal corporation (hereinafter referred to ascorporation with offices at (hereinafter referred to as Job Order Contractor).
	WITNESSETH	H:
THAT IN CONSIDERATION of presents do agree, as follows:	the mutual promises and cover	nants hereinafter contained in this Contract by these

# 1. <u>ARTICLES</u>

#### **ARTICLE 1**

#### **DEFINITIONS**

- 1.1 "AIA Masterspec" is the industry-standard master specification system recommended for architectural, engineering, and construction/building specifications.
- 1.2 "Affidavit of Wages Paid" means the form for Public Works contracts requiring that each and every employer on the project file with the Washington State Department of Labor and Industries affirming that prevailing wages have been paid.
- 1.3 "Alternative Public Works Transaction" means all documents, and records related to the design-build, general contractor/construction manager, and job order contracting procedures authorized in RCW 39.10.051, 39.10.061 and 39.10.130, respectively.
- 1.4 "Application for Payment" means a written request submitted by Contractor to the Owner, or if the Owner has retained an A/E for a Work Order, to the A/E for payment of Work completed in accordance with the Contract Documents and approved Work Order.
- 1.5 "Architect," "Engineer," or "A/E" means a person or entity lawfully entitled to practice architecture or engineering, representing Owner within the limits of its delegated authority. In cases where no outside Architect Engineer or A/E is associated with specific Work or Work Order, the Owners representative will act instead.
- 1.6 **"Best Practices Manual Construction"** means Spokane Public Schools Best Practices Manual Construction as found on the districts website at: <a href="www.spokaneschools.org/solicitations">www.spokaneschools.org/solicitations</a> under Solicitations due January, 2023, RFP 14-2223 Job Order Contracting Services.
- 1.7 **"CPARB"** means the Capital Projects Advisory Review Board
- 1.8 **"Collusion"** means an agreement between two or more persons to defraud persons or institutions of their legal rights, or to obtain an object forbidden by law.
- 1.9 **"Contingency"** means an event that may occur in the future, especially a problem, emergency, or expense that might arise unexpectedly, needs to be dealt with, and therefore must be prepared for.
- 1.10 **"Contract"** is the **"Job Order Contract"** as defined below in which the contractor agrees to a fixed period, indefinite quantity delivery order contract which provides for the use of negotiated definitive Work Orders.
- 1.11 "Contract Award Amount" is the minimum committed amount as stated in the RFP.
- 1.12 "Contract Documents" means the Job Order Contracting Services Request For Proposal, completed proposal phase submissions, and any Addenda issued.
- 1.13 "Contract Sum" is the total amount payable by Owner to Contractor for performance of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, including the Contract Award Amount and any amount for Work Orders that is above the Contract Award Amount.

- 1.14 "Contractor" (also "Job Order Contractor") means the person or entity awarded the Job Order Contract who has agreed with Owner to perform Work in accordance with specific Work Orders, associated Project Documents, and the Contract Documents.
- 1.15 "Coefficient" also known as "Cost Coefficient Multiplier" is the Contractor's competitively bid price adjustment to the unit prices as published in the Unit Price Book (e.g. .95 or 1.10) applied to pre-described and pre-priced tasks contained in the Unit Price Book (UPB). The "Standard Coefficient" is for Work that is conducted during normal working hours (7:00AM to 5:00PM, Monday through Friday) and the "Non-standard Coefficient" is for Work that occurs during other than normal working hours (5:00PM to 7:00AM, Monday through Friday, weekends and holidays).
- 1.16 **"Drawings"** are the graphic and pictorial portions of the Work Order Proposal showing the design, location, and dimensions of the Work, including but not limited to, plans, elevations, sections, details, schedules, and diagrams.
- 1.17 **"Local Office"** means Contractor's office located within Spokane County preferably sited within the boundaries of Spokane Public Schools.
- 1.18 **"Final Acceptance"** means the written acceptance associated with a Work Order issued to Contractor by Owner after Contractor has completed the requirements of the Work Order.
- 1.19 **"Final Completion"** means that the Work is fully and finally completed in accordance with the Work Order.
- 1.20 **"Force Majeure"** means those acts of God entitling Contractor to request an equitable adjustment in the Contract Time.
- 1.21 "Insurance Certificate" means that document verifying the policy the Contractor shall purchase from and maintain in a company or companies lawfully authorized and admitted to do business in the State of Washington, possessing the minimum AM Best rating, the financial rating, in the amounts as specified in the General Terms and Conditions, who is reasonably acceptable to the Owner, and shall name the Owner as additional insured with the additional insured endorsement attached, for Work performed under this Contract.
- 1.22 "Intent to Pay Prevailing Wage" means the form for Public works contracts requiring that each and every employer on the project file the Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages.
- 1.23 "Job Order Contract" (JOC) is a contract between the Owner and a licensed contractor in which the contractor agrees to a fixed period, indefinite quantity delivery order contract which provides for the use of negotiated definitive Work Orders for public works as defined in RCW 39.04.010. The Contract and individual Work Orders are further defined and/or limited in location, scope, term, and amounts by the RFP, and other requirements included in the General Conditions documents.
- 1.24 "L&I/OSHA Worker Comp MOD Factor" means that rating applied to the contractors experience factor associated with the frequency of accidents experienced and that effects the rate of charge for Workers Compensation as applied by OSHA/L&I.
- 1.25 **"MWBE Outreach Plan"** means the Contractor's plan to identify, mentor and assist small, minority and woman owned businesses, to equitably spread subcontracting opportunities to the extent permitted by Washington State Civil Rights Act RCW 49.60.400.

# I. CONTRACT

- 1.26 "Non Pre-Priced" means items that are not included in the Unit Price Book.
- 1.27 "Notice to Proceed" is the authorization document from Owner to proceed with an individual Work Order.
- 1.28 **"OSHA Annual Summary"** means the OSHA Annual required report related to incident history including employee time loss and medical history.
- 1.29 **"Owner"** means Spokane Public Schools and its authorized representative with the authority to enter into, administer, and/or terminate the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and make related determinations and findings.
- 1.30 "Partnering" Owner and Job Order Contractor working in a synergistic way.
- 1.31 **"Performance Bond"** means the statutory bonds pursuant to RCW 39.08 that the Contractor shall secure from a surety company acceptable to the Owner, admitted and licensed in the State of Washington, covering the faithful performance of the Contract and payment of all obligations arising thereunder in the form and amount prescribed in the Contract Documents, each in the full amount of the Contract Sum plus sales tax.
- 1.32 **"Prevailing Wage"** is the hourly wage, usual benefits and overtime, paid in the largest city in each county, to the majority of workers, laborers, and mechanics. Prevailing wages are established, by the Department of Labor and Industries, for each trade and occupation employed in the performance of public work. They are established separately for each county, and are reflective of local wage conditions. <u>RCW 39.12.010</u> and <u>RCW 39.12.015</u>.
- 1.33 **"Proposal"** means a complete, properly signed and formatted offer in response to Spokane Public Schools Request for Proposal to enter into a contract for Job Order Contracting services.
- 1.34 **"Protest of Process"** means the written document filed with Spokane Public Schools, giving rise to the protest. The document shall include the name of the protesting Respondent, a detailed description of the specific factual and legal grounds for the protest, copies of all supporting documents, and the specific relief requested.
- 1.35 **"Public Works"** means all work, construction, alteration, repair or improvement that is executed at the cost of the Owner. This includes, but is not limited to, demolition, remodeling, renovation, road construction, building construction and utilities construction. <u>RCW 39.04.010</u>.
- 1.36 **"Respondent"** means person or entity who submits a proposal.
- 1.37 **"Retainage"** is that portion of a government contractor's payment, typically five percent that is withheld by a government authority until the contract is satisfactorily completed in accordance with the statutory requirements of RCW 60.28.
- 1.38 **"Retainage Bond"** means RCW 60.28.011(6) allows a contractor to submit a retainage bond for all or any portion of the contract retainage in a form acceptable to the Owner, admitted and licensed in the State of Washinhgton, and from a bonding company meeting standards established by the Owner as prescribed in the Contract Documents.
- 1.39 **"Specifications"** are that portion of the Work Order consisting of the written requirements for materials, equipment, construction systems, standards and workmanship for the Work, and performance of related services, **Telephone:** 509-354-7186 **E-mail:** barbca@spokaneschools.org Fax: 509-354-7183

# I. CONTRACT

including, but not limited to, the then current version of the Best Practices Manual – Construction for Spokane Public Schools.

- 1.40 **"Subcontract"** means a contract entered into between the Job Order Contractor and another contractor for the purpose of obtaining supplies, materials, equipment, or services of any kind for or in connection with a Work Order.
- 1.41 **"Subcontractor"** means any entity, other than the Job Order Contractor, who agrees to furnish or furnishes any supplies, materials, equipment, or services of any kind in connection with a Work Order.
- 1.42 **"Substantial Completion"** means that stage in the progress of a Work Order where Owner has full and unrestricted use and benefit of the facilities for the purposes intended.
- 1.43 **"Unit Price Book"** shall be the "then current" RS Means *Facilities* Construction Cost Data publication containing specific prices to be used in establishing a price for a Work Order.
- 1.44 "Weighted Average City Cost Index" means that section of the "Unit Price Book" applicable to Spokane, Washington that shall be used in calculating the cost of Work Orders.
- 1.45 **"Work"** means the construction and services required by a Work Order, and includes, but is not limited to, labor, materials, supplies, equipment, services, permits, and the manufacture and fabrication of components, performed, furnished, or provided in accordance with a Work Order.
- 1.46 **"Job Order"** is the negotiated and agreed definition of the work to be performed, reflecting the Work Order Request and accepted Work Order Proposal. It is a lump sum, fixed price contract for the agreed upon scope of work.
- 1.47 **"Job Order Proposal"** is a proposal from the Contractor for the Work requested in a Work Order Request including but not limited to: scope, scheduling, drawings, specifications, quantities, dollar amount, submittals and all others as defined in 42 above.
- 1.48 "Job Order Request" is a request issued by an Owner to the Contractor for a Job Order Proposal.

#### **ARTICLE 2**

#### WORK TO BE PERFORMED

- 2.1 In response to Job Orders that may be mutually agreed upon and issued periodically by Owner, Job Order Contractor shall, except as may be specified elsewhere in the Contract, furnish all the Work, including necessary labor, materials, tools, supplies, equipment, transportation, supervision, management, and perform all operations necessary and required for survey, design and construction work which will be defined and further described as to specific project requirements in each Job Order and as required by Owners Best Practices Manual Construction. The Work shall be performed in accordance with the requirements set forth in each Job Order and as further specified in Section 9, Number 2," Contract Pricing Coefficients, and in Section 9, Number 3, Scope of Services, both of which are incorporated herein and made a part hereof.
- 2.2 This Contract embodies the agreement of Owner and Job Order Contractor to terms and conditions which will govern any Work that may be prescribed under a Job Order that may be issued by Owner and agreed to by Job Order

Contractor. Nothing herein shall be construed as requiring Owner to issue any Job Order, nor requiring Job Order Contractor to accept same, it being the intent that both parties must mutually agree to any specific Work before a Job Order may be issued.

#### **ARTICLE 3**

#### JOB ORDERS

- 3.1 Performance of the Work shall be undertaken only upon the issuance of a written Job Order by Owner. Job Orders shall be in accordance with the requirements specified in Section 9, number 3, Scope of Services, and will set forth, with the necessary particularity, the following:
  - a. Contract number along with Job Order Contractor's name;
  - b. Job Order number and date:
  - c. The agreed Work and applicable technical specifications and drawings;
  - d. The agreed period of performance and, if required by Owner, a work schedule;
  - e. The place of performance;
  - f. The agreed total price for the Work to be performed;
  - g. Submittal requirements;
  - h. Owner's authorized representative who will accept the completed Work;
  - i. Signatures by the parties hereto signifying agreement with the specific terms of the Job Order; and
  - j. Such other information as may be necessary to perform the Work.
- 3.2 Job Orders may be amended by Owner in the same manner as they are issued.
- 3.3 The minimum Job Order value is \$2,000 unless waived by Job Order Contractor. The maximum Job Order value is \$500,000.
- 3.4 Any work order over three hundred fifty thousand dollars, excluding Washington state sales tax, and including over six hundred single trade hours shall utilize a state registered apprenticeship program for that single trade in accordance with RCW 39.04.320.

#### **ARTICLE 4**

# SPECIFICATIONS AND DRAWINGS

4.1 Job Order Contractor shall keep on the work site a copy of the drawings and specifications for each active Job Order requiring drawings or specifications and shall at all times give Owner access thereto. Anything mentioned in the specifications and not shown on the drawings, or shown on the drawings and not mentioned in the specifications, shall be

of like effect as if shown or mentioned in both. In case of differences between drawings and specifications, the drawings shall govern. In case of discrepancy either in the figures, in the drawings, or in the specifications, the matter shall be promptly submitted to Owner, who shall promptly make a determination in writing. Any adjustment by Job Order Contractor without such a determination shall be at its own risk and expense. Owner shall furnish from time to time such detail drawings and other information as considered necessary, unless otherwise provided.

- 4.2 Wherever in the specifications or upon the drawings the words "directed," "required," "ordered," "designated," "prescribed," or words of like import are used, it shall be understood that the "direction," "requirement," "order," "designation," or "prescription," of Owner is intended and similarly the words "approved," "acceptable," "satisfactory," or words of like import shall mean "approved by," or "acceptable to," or "satisfactory to" Owner, unless otherwise expressly stated.
- 4.3 Where "as shown," "as indicated," "as detailed," or words of similar import are used, it shall be understood that the reference is made to the drawings accompanying the Job Order unless stated otherwise. The word "provided" as used herein shall be understood to mean "provide complete in place," that is "furnished and installed."
- 4.4 Shop drawings means drawings submitted to Owner by Job Order Contractor showing in detail:
  - a. The proposed fabrication and assembly of structural elements and,
  - b. The installation (i.e., form, fit and attachment details) of materials or equipment.
  - c. The construction and detailing of elements of the Work.

It includes sketches, diagrams, layouts, schematics, descriptive literature, illustrations, schedules, performance and test data, and similar materials furnished by Job Order Contractor to explain in detail specific portions of the Work. Owner may duplicate, use, and disclose in any manner and for any purpose shop drawings delivered under the Contract.

- 4.5 Job Order Contractor shall coordinate all shop drawings, and review them for accuracy, completeness, and compliance with Contract requirements and shall indicate its approval thereon as evidence of such coordination and review. Shop drawings submitted to Owner without evidence of Job Order Contractor's approval may be returned for resubmission. Owner will indicate its approval or disapproval of the shop drawings and if not approved as submitted shall indicate Owner's reasons therefore. Any work done before such approval shall be at Job Order Contractor's risk. Approval by Owner shall not relieve Job Order Contractor from responsibility for any errors or omissions in such drawings, nor from responsibility for complying with the requirements of the Contract, except with respect to variations described and approved in accordance with paragraph 4.6 below.
- 4.6 If shop drawings show variations from the Job Order requirements, Job Order Contractor shall describe such variations in writing, separate from the drawings, at the time of submission. If Owner approves any such variation, Owner shall issue an appropriate Contract modification, except that, if the variation is minor and does not involve a change in price or in time of performance, a modification need not be issued.
- 4.7 Job Order Contractor shall submit to Owner for approval an appropriate number of copies of all shop drawings as called for under the various headings of the Job Order specifications. Sets of all shop drawings will be retained by Owner and one set will be returned to Job Order Contractor.
- 4.8 Omissions from the drawings or specifications or the mis-description of details of work which are manifestly necessary to carry out the intent of the drawings and specifications, or which are customarily performed, shall not relieve Job Order Contractor from performing such omitted or mis-described details of the Work but they shall be performed as if fully and correctly set forth and described in the drawings and specifications.

4.9 Job Order Contractor shall check all Owner furnished drawings immediately upon receipt and shall promptly notify Owner of any discrepancies. Figures marked on drawings shall be followed in preference to scale measurements. Large scale drawings shall govern small scale drawings. Job Order Contractor shall compare all drawings and verify the figures before laying out the Work and will be responsible for any errors which might have been avoided thereby.

#### **ARTICLE 5**

#### USE OF SPECIFICATIONS, DRAWINGS AND NOTES

All drawings (to include as-built drawings), sketches, designs, design data, specifications, note books, technical and scientific data provided to Job Order Contractor or developed by Job Order Contractor pursuant to the Contract and all photographs, negatives, reports, findings, recommendations, data and memoranda of every description relating thereto, as well as all copies of the foregoing relating to the Work or any part thereof, shall be the property of Owner and may be used by Owner without any claim by Job Order Contractor for additional compensation, unless such material developed by Job Order Contractor does not result in an issued Job Order. In such cases, Job Order Contractor will receive reasonable reimbursement for the development of such materials before Owner uses them in any manner whatsoever. In addition, Owner agrees to hold Job Order Contractor harmless to the extent permitted by law from any legal liability arising out of the Owner's use of such materials.

#### **ARTICLE 6**

#### PERMITS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

directly for the actual, documented costs of construction permits required for the performance of the Work. Owner will pay directly for the actual, documented costs of construction permits required for the performance of the Work however, Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining such permits Job Order Contractor shall also be responsible for all damages to persons or property that occur as a result of Job Order Contractor's fault or negligence, and shall take proper safety and health precautions to protect the Work, the workers, the public, and the property of others. Job Order Contractor shall also be responsible for all materials delivered and work performed until completion and acceptance of the entire Work, except for any completed unit of Work which may have been accepted under the Contract, unless otherwise directed by Owner.

# **ARTICLE 7**

#### MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP

All equipment, material, and articles incorporated in the Work covered by this Contract shall be new and of the most suitable grade for the purpose intended, unless otherwise specifically provided in the Contract. References in the specifications to equipment, material, article, or patented process by trade name, make, or catalog number, shall be regarded as establishing a standard of quality and shall supercede the requirements of Spokane Public Schools Best Practices Manual – Construction and shall not be construed as limiting competition. Job Order Contractor may, at its option, use any equipment, material, article, or process that is equal to that named in the specifications or Best Practices Manual – Construction so long as the Contractor has received prior written approval of the Owner to do so. Final determination of the suitability and acceptability of any such equipment, material, article, or process shall be the sole judgment of the Owner.

7.2 Job Order Contractor shall obtain Owner's approval of the machinery and mechanical and other equipment to be incorporated into the Work. When requesting approval, Job Order Contractor shall furnish to Owner the name of the manufacturer, the model number, and other information concerning the performance, capacity, nature, and rating of the machinery and mechanical and other equipment. When required by the Contract or by Owner, Job Order Contractor shall also obtain Owner's approval of the material or articles which Job Order Contractor contemplates incorporating into the Work. When requesting approval, Job Order Contractor shall provide full information concerning the material or articles.

When directed to do so, Job Order Contractor shall submit samples for approval. Machinery, equipment, material and articles that do not have the required approval shall be installed or used at the risk of subsequent rejection.

7.3 All work under the Contract shall be performed in a skillful and workmanlike manner.

#### **ARTICLE 8**

#### **TESTING OF MATERIALS**

8.1 Unless otherwise specified in a Job Order, the Job Order Contractor shall be responsible for any required testing of materials prior to incorporation into the Work.

#### **ARTICLE 9**

#### LAYOUT OF WORK

9.1 Job Order Contractor shall lay out its work in accordance with the Job Order plans and specifications and shall be responsible for all measurements in connection with the layout of the Work. Job Order Contractor shall furnish, at its own expense, all stakes, templates, platforms, equipment, tools, materials, and labor required to layout any part of the Work. Job Order Contractor shall also be responsible for maintaining and preserving all control points established by Owner.

#### **ARTICLE 10**

#### SITE INVESTIGATION AND CONDITIONS AFFECTING THE WORK

- 10.1 By issuing a Job Order Proposal or accepting a Job Order, Job Order Contractor acknowledges that it has taken steps reasonably necessary to ascertain the nature and location of the Work, and that it has investigated and satisfied itself as to the general and local conditions which can affect the Work or its cost, including but not limited to:
  - a. Conditions bearing upon transportation, disposal, handling, and storage of materials;
  - b. The availability of labor, water, electric power, and roads;
  - c. Uncertainties of weather, river stages, tides, or similar physical conditions at the site;
  - d. The conformation and conditions of the ground; and
  - e. The character of equipment and facilities needed preliminary to and during work performance.

10.2 Job Order Contractor also acknowledges that it has satisfied itself as to the character, quality, and quantity of surface and subsurface materials or obstacles to be encountered insofar as this information is reasonably ascertainable from an inspection of the site, including all exploratory work done by Owner, as well as from the Job Order drawings and specifications made a part of this Contract.

#### **ARTICLE 11**

#### **DIFFERING SITE CONDITIONS**

- 11.1 Job Order Contractor shall promptly, and before the conditions are disturbed, give a written notice to Owner of:
  - a. Subsurface or latent physical conditions at the site which differ materially from those indicated in the Job Order, or
  - b. Unknown physical conditions at the site, of an unusual nature, which differ materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work of the character provided for in the Job Order.
- 11.2 Owner shall investigate the site conditions promptly after receiving the notice. If the conditions do materially so differ and cause an increase or decrease in Job Order Contractor's cost of, or the time required for, performing any part of the Work, whether or not changed as a result of the conditions, an equitable adjustment shall be made and the Job Order modified in writing accordingly.
- 11.3 No request by Job Order Contractor for an equitable adjustment to the Job Order under this Article shall be allowed, unless Job Order Contractor has given the written notice required.
- 11.4 No request by Job Order Contractor for an equitable adjustment to the Job Order for differing site conditions shall be allowed if made after final payment under such Job Order.

#### **ARTICLE 12**

#### **CONTRACT TERM**

- 12.1 The term of the Contract shall commence on the date it was executed by both parties and shall terminate twenty-four (24) months from date of execution or else in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Contract, unless extended for twelve (12) additional months if mutually agreed to by the Owner and the Contractor.
- 12.2 Owner shall provide written notice of intent to exercise the contract extension to the Contractor before the expiration of the original two year Contract term. The Contractor will be presumed to mutually agree to the exercise of the extension option, unless the Contractor notifies the Owner otherwise in writing within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the Owner's notice to exercise.
- 12.3 Cost coefficients in Section 9, number 2 hereto will remain in place for the extension term.
- 12.4 Job Orders may be issued at any time during the term of this Contract. This Contract will remain in full force and effect during the performance of any Job Order.

#### **ARTICLE 13**

#### **COMPENSATION**

13.1 As full consideration for the satisfactory performance by Job Order Contractor of Work prescribed under the Contract and applicable Job Orders, Owner shall pay Job Order Contractor the amounts specified in the individual Job Orders. The amounts in the individual Job Orders will be determined according to Section 9, number 2 and Section 9, number 3 hereto.

#### **ARTICLE 14**

#### INVOICING AND PAYMENTS

- 14.1 Pursuant to RCW 39.12, "Prevailing Wages on Public Works," the Contractor will not receive **any** payment until the Contractor and all Subcontractors of any tier have submitted state-approved "Statements of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wage" to the Owner. The statement must have the approval of the Industrial Statistician of the Department of Labor and Industries before it is submitted to the Owner. The statement must include the Contractor's registration number, the number of workers in each trade classification, and the applicable wage rate for each trade listed. The Contractor agrees to provide each Subcontractor of any tier with each trade listed. The Contractor agrees to provide each Subcontractor of any tier with a schedule of applicable prevailing wage rates. The Contractor and the respective Subcontractors of any tier shall pay all fees required by the Department of Labor and Industries, including fees for the approval of the "Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages." Approved copies of the "Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages" must be posted where workers can easily read them.
- 14.2 Owner shall make progress payments as invoiced and approved by the Owner. Job Order Contractor shall use an acceptable invoice form and shall include supporting documents to reflect a breakdown of the total price showing the amount included therein for each principal category of the Work, in such detail as requested, to provide a basis for determining progress payments including a separate line item for the amount of the then applicable Washington State sales tax. In the estimation of Work completed, Owner will authorize payment for material delivered on the site and preparatory work done if Job Order Contractor furnishes satisfactory evidence that it has acquired title to such material and that the material will be used to perform the Work.
- 14.3 All material and work covered by progress payments made shall, at the time of payment, become the sole property of Owner, but this provision shall not be construed as:
  - a. Relieving Job Order Contractor from the sole responsibility for all material and Work upon which payments have been made or the restoration of any damaged Work; or
  - b. Waiving the right of Owner to require the fulfillment of all of the terms of the Contract.

#### I. CONTRACT

- 14.4 Unless Job Order Contractor provides Owner with a Retainage Bond in accordance with RCW 60.28.011(6), in accordance with RCW 60.28, a sum not to exceed five percent (5%) of each Invoice shall be retained after award of a Contract for public improvements, or work for which retained percentages are required to be reserved under the provision of RCW 60.28. The retained percentages will be held in a fund by the Owner not subject to payment until sixty (60) days following the Final Acceptance of the Work, or until receipt of all necessary releases from the Department of Labor and Industries, Department of Revenue, and Department of Employment Security, and any settlement of any lien filed under Chapter 60.28 R.C.W., whichever is later, as provided for in R.C.W. 39.08.010. In addition, to process payment for retainage, the following is required:
  - a. In accordance with RCW 39.12, "Prevailing Wages on Public Works, the Job Order Contractor will submit state-approved "Statement of Affidavit of Wages Paid" for the Contractor and all Subcontractors of any tier, to the Owner.
- Owner shall pay all unpaid amounts due Job Order Contractor under this Contract within sixty (60) days, after:
  - a. Presentation of release of all claims against Owner arising by virtue of the Contract, other than claims, in stated amounts, that Job Order Contractor has specifically excepted from the operation of the release. A release may also be required of the assignee if Job Order Contractor's claim to amounts payable under this Contract has been assigned. Job Order Contractor shall complete a Contractor's release form acceptable to Owner.
  - b. Consent of Job Order Contractor's surety, if any.
- 14.6 Job Order Contractor shall submit invoices to the following address:

SPOKANE PUBLIC SCHOOLS ATTN: JOC PROJECT MANAGER 2815 EAST GARLAND AVENUE SPOKANE. WA 99207

#### **ARTICLE 15**

#### CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE

- 15.1 If required, the Job Order Contractor will submit for approval with the signed Job Order a practicable schedule showing the sequence in which Job Order Contractor proposes to perform the Work, and the dates on which Job Order Contractor contemplates starting and completing the several salient features of the Work (including acquiring materials, plant and equipment). The schedule may be a formal computerized schedule or a progress chart in a bar chart format of suitable scale to indicate appropriately the percentage of Work scheduled for completion by any given date during the period. In either case the basic information should be the same and the schedule chart must contain at a minimum:
  - a. A list of the different types of work activities or work elements.
  - b. Show the logical dependencies (ties) to indicate what Work must be accomplished before other Work can begin.
  - c. Show proposed start and complete dates or time frames for each work activity or work element.
  - d. Calculate the "weighting" or relative worth each work activity or work element is of the total project either as a percent or dollar amount.

If the Job Order Contractor fails to submit a schedule with the Job Order, Owner may withhold approval of progress payments until Job Order Contractor submits the required schedule.

- 15.2 Job Order Contractor shall submit a progress report for each Job Order every thirty (30) days or as directed by Owner, and upon doing so shall immediately deliver a current schedule to Owner for each Job Order. If Job Order Contractor falls behind the approved schedule, Job Order Contractor shall take steps necessary to improve its progress, including those that may be reasonably required by Owner. Without additional cost to Owner, Owner may require Job Order Contractor to increase the number of shifts, overtime operations, days of work, and/or the amount of construction plant or equipment, and to submit for approval any supplementary schedule or schedules in chart form as Owner deems necessary to demonstrate how the approved rate of progress will be regained.
- 15.3 Emergency Work: Job Order Contractor will give top priority to any emergency work Owner may have and will allocate all resources necessary to accomplish such work in accordance with Owner's schedule requirements. To the extent the Job Order Contractor incurs additional cost, expense or schedule delay in performing Owner's emergency work, Owner will equitably adjust the Contract under Article 22.
- 15.4 Failure of Job Order Contractor to comply with the requirements of Owner under this clause shall be grounds for a determination by Owner that Job Order Contractor is not prosecuting the Work with sufficient diligence to ensure completion within the time specified in the Job Order. Upon making this determination, Owner may terminate Job Order Contractor's right to proceed with the Work, or any separable part of it, in accordance with Article 27.
- 15.5 Time is of the essence for all work to be performed under this Contract. Contractor shall note that the Work must be completed within the time limit stated in the Job Orders and failure to timely complete the Work will result in liquidated damages if provided for in a Job Order.

#### **ARTICLE 16**

#### SUPERINTENDENCE BY JOB ORDER CONTRACTOR

16.1 At all times during performance of a Job Order and until the Work is completed and accepted, Job Order Contractor shall directly superintend the Work or assign and have on the site a competent superintendent who is satisfactory to Owner and has authority to act for Job Order Contractor.

#### **ARTICLE 17**

# INSPECTION OF CONSTRUCTION AND ACCEPTANCE

- 17.1 Job Order Contractor shall maintain an adequate inspection system and perform such inspections as will ensure that the Work called for conforms to Job Order requirements. Job Order Contractor shall maintain complete inspection records and make them available to Owner. All work shall be conducted under the general direction of Owner and is subject to inspection and test by Owner at all places and at all reasonable times before acceptance to ensure strict compliance with the terms of the Contract.
- 17.2 Owner inspections and tests are for the sole benefit of Owner and do not:
  - a. Relieve Job Order Contractor of responsibility for providing adequate quality control measures;
  - b. Relieve Job Order Contractor of responsibility for damage to or loss of the material before acceptance;
  - c. Constitute or imply acceptance; or

- d. Affect the continuing rights of Owner after acceptance of the complete work under paragraph 17.8 below.
- 17.3 The presence or absence of an inspector does not relieve Job Order Contractor from any Contract requirement, nor is the inspector authorized to change any term or condition of the specification without Owner's written authorization.
- 17.4 Job Order Contractor shall promptly furnish, without additional charge, all facilities, labor, and material reasonably needed for performing such safe and convenient inspections and tests as may be required by Owner. Owner may charge to Job Order Contractor any additional cost of inspection or test when Work is not ready at the time specified by Job Order Contractor for inspection or test, or when prior rejection makes re-inspection or retest necessary. Owner shall perform all inspections and tests in a manner that will not unnecessarily delay the Work. Special, full size, and performance tests shall be performed as described in the Job Order.
- 17.5 Job Order Contractor shall, without charge, replace or correct Work found by Owner not to conform to Job Order requirements, unless Owner consents to accept the Work with an appropriate adjustment in Contract price. Job Order Contractor shall promptly segregate and remove rejected material from the premises.
- 17.6 If Job Order Contractor does not promptly replace or correct rejected Work, Owner may:
  - a. By Contract or otherwise, replace or correct the Work and charge the cost to Job Order Contractor or
  - b. Terminate for default Job Order Contractor's right to proceed.
- 17.7 If, before acceptance of the entire Work, Owner decides to examine already completed Work by removing it or tearing it out, Job Order Contractor, on request, shall promptly furnish all necessary facilities, labor, and material. If the Work is found to be defective or nonconforming in any material respect due to the fault of Job Order Contractor or its sub contractors, Job Order Contractor shall bear the expenses of the examination and of satisfactory reconstruction. However, if the Work is found to meet requirements, Owner shall make an equitable adjustment for the additional services involved in the examination and reconstruction, including, if completion of the Work was thereby delayed, an extension of the period of time for performance.
- 17.8 Substantial Completion means the date on which the Work, or an agreed upon portion of the Work, is sufficiently complete so that Owner can occupy and use the Work or a portion thereof for its intended purposes.

Unless otherwise specified in the Job Order, Owner shall accept, as promptly as practicable after completion and inspection, all work required by the Job Order or that portion of the Work Owner determines can be accepted separately. Acceptance shall be final and conclusive except for latent defects, fraud, gross mistakes, or Owner's rights under any warranty or guarantee.

#### **ARTICLE 18**

#### OPERATIONS AND STORAGE AREAS

- 18.1 Job Order Contractor shall confine all operations (including storage of materials) to areas authorized or approved by Owner.
- 18.2 Temporary buildings (e.g., storage sheds, shops, offices) and utilities may be erected by Job Order Contractor only with the approval of Owner and shall be built with labor and materials furnished by Job Order Contractor without expense to Owner. The temporary buildings and utilities shall remain the property of Job Order Contractor and shall be

removed by Job Order Contractor at its expense upon the completion of the Work. With the written consent of Owner, the buildings and utilities may be abandoned and need not be removed.

18.3 Job Order Contractor shall use only established roadways or temporary roadways constructed by Job Order Contractor when and as authorized by Owner. Job Order Contractor shall comply with all Federal, state and local laws and regulations when transporting materials.

### **ARTICLE 19**

# PROTECTION OF EXISTING VEGETATION, STRUCTURES, UTILITIES AND IMPROVEMENTS

- 19.1 Job Order Contractor shall preserve and protect all structures, equipment and vegetation (such as trees, shrubs, and grass) on or adjacent to the site, which are not to be removed and which do not unreasonably interfere with the Work required under the Job Order. Job Order Contractor shall only remove trees when specifically authorized to do so, and shall avoid damaging vegetation that will remain in place. If any limbs or branches of trees are broken during performance by the operation of equipment, or by workmen, Job Order Contractor shall immediately notify the Owner, and shall then trim those limbs or branches with a clean cut and paint the cut with a tree pruning compound, or otherwise repair or correct the damage as directed by Owner.
- 19.2 Job Order Contractor shall protect from damage all existing improvements and utilities at or near the site and on adjacent property of third parties, the locations of which are made known to or should be known by Job Order Contractor. Job Order Contractor shall immediately notify the Owner of any damage to existing improvements or utilities caused during the course of executing the Job Order. Job Order Contractor shall then timely repair any damage to those facilities, including those that are the property of third parties, resulting from failure to comply with the requirements of the Job Order or failure to exercise reasonable care in performing the Work. If Job Order Contractor fails or refuses to repair the damage promptly, Owner may have the necessary repair work performed and charge the cost to Job Order Contract.

### **ARTICLE 20**

### CLEANING UP AND REFUSE DISPOSAL

20.1 Job Order Contractor shall at all times keep the site, including storage areas, free from accumulations of waste materials. Before completing the Work, Job Order Contractor shall remove from the premises any rubbish, tools, scaffolding, equipment, and materials that are not the property of Owner. Upon completing the Work, Job Order Contractor shall leave the site in a clean and orderly condition satisfactory to Owner. Final cleanup of the premises shall be included in the period of performance of the Job Order. Job Order Contractor shall be responsible for all construction refuse disposal containers and their removal from the site. Disposal of any hazardous materials not addressed and priced in the Job Order will be segregated for disposal by Owner unless Owner requires Job Order Contractor to dispose of the materials in which case, an equitable adjustment in the price will be negotiated and agreed.

#### **ARTICLE 21**

#### WARRANTY OF CONSTRUCTION

21.1 In addition to any other warranties in any Job Orders, Job Order Contractor warrants, except as provided in paragraph 21.10 of this Article, that work performed conforms to the Job Order requirements and is free of any defect in

equipment, material or design furnished, or workmanship performed by Job Order Contractor or any of its subcontractors or suppliers at any tier.

- 21.2 This warranty shall continue for a period of one (1) year from the date of final acceptance of the Work. If Owner takes possession of any part of the Work before final acceptance, this warranty shall continue for a period of one (1) year from the date possession is taken.
- 21.3 Job Order Contractor shall remedy at Job Order Contractor's expense any failure of the Work to conform to the plans and specifications, or any construction defect. In addition, the Job Order Contractor shall remedy at Job Order Contractor's expense any damage to Owner's real or personal property, when that damage is the result of:
  - a. Job Order Contractor's failure to conform to requirements; or
  - b. Any defect of equipment, material, workmanship, or design furnished by the Job Order Contractor.
- 21.4 Job Order Contractor shall restore any work damaged in fulfilling the terms and conditions of this Article. Job Order Contractor's warranty with respect to work repaired or replaced will run for one (1) year from the date of repair or replacement.
- 21.5 Owner shall notify Job Order Contractor, in writing, within a reasonable time after the discovery of any failure, defect, or damage.
- 21.6 If Job Order Contractor fails to remedy any failure, defect, or damage within a reasonable time after receipt of notice, Owner shall have the right to replace, repair, or otherwise remedy the failure, defect or damage at Job Order Contractor's expense.
- 21.7 With respect to all warranties, expressed or implied, from subcontractors, manufacturers, or suppliers for work performed and materials furnished for Job Orders issued under this Contract, Job Order Contractor shall:
  - a. Obtain all warranties for the Work in the Job Order;
  - b. Require all warranties to be executed, in writing, for the benefit of Owner; and
  - c. Enforce all warranties for the benefit of Owner;
- 21.8 In the event Job Order Contractor's warranty under paragraph 21.2 of this Article has expired, Owner may bring suit at its expense to enforce a subcontractor's, manufacturer's, or supplier's warranty.
- 21.9 Unless a defect is caused by the negligence of Job Order Contractor or subcontractor or supplier at any tier, Job Order Contractor shall not be liable for the repair of any defects of material or design furnished by Owner or for the repair of any damage that results from any defect in Owner-furnished material or design.
- 21.10 Job Order Contractor is not responsible for and does not warranty pre-existing work or facilities that may be assigned to Job Order Contractor except as modified by the Job Order.
- 21.11 This warranty shall not limit Owner's rights under Article 17 of this Contract with respect to latent defects, gross mistakes, or fraud.

# **ARTICLE 22**

#### **CHANGES**

- Owner may, at any time, without notice to the sureties, if any, by written order designated or indicated to be a change order, make changes in the Work within the general scope of the Job Orders, including changes:
  - a. In the specifications (including drawings and designs);
  - b. In Owner-furnished facilities, equipment, materials, services, or site; or
  - c. Directing acceleration in the performance of the Work, or otherwise altering the schedule for performance of the Work.
- Any other written order (which, as used in this paragraph, includes direction, instruction, interpretation, or determination) from Owner that causes a change shall be treated as a change order under this Article; provided, that before commencing work on the change, Job Order Contractor must give Owner written notice stating the date, circumstances, and source of the order and that Job Order Contractor regards the order as a change order.
- 22.3 Except as provided in this Article, no order, statement, or conduct of Owner shall be treated as a change under this Article or entitle Job Order Contractor to an equitable adjustment hereunder.
- 22.4 If any change under this Article causes an increase or decrease in Job Order Contractor's cost of, or the time required for, the performance of any part of the Work under a Job Order, Job Order Contractor must submit a proposal for an adjustment under this Article within thirty (30) calendar days after:
  - a. Receipt of a written change order under Paragraph 22.1 above or;
  - b. The furnishing of a written notice under Paragraph 22.2 above,

in submitting to Owner a written statement describing the general nature, amount of, and time extension required for the proposal. The statement of proposal for adjustment may be included in the notice under Paragraph 22.2 above. Failure to provide such proposal within the thirty (30) days set forth herein constitutes a waiver of Contractor's claim for any increases in cost or time resulting from the change.

- All equitable adjustments and modifications to the Job Order due to a change shall be made in writing and prior to Contractor's commencement of any Work related to the change.
- 22.6 No proposal by Job Order Contractor for an equitable adjustment shall be allowed if asserted after final payment under the Job Order.

### **ARTICLE 23**

# PRICING CHANGES

23.1 Job Order Contractor, in connection with any proposal it makes for a Job Order change shall furnish a price breakdown itemized as required by Owner. Pricing for such changes shall be based on quantities mutually agreed to by

Job Order Contractor and Owner and the rates contained in the Unit Price Book, modified by the appropriate city cost index, as adjusted by the applicable coefficient(s).

23.2 Job Order Contractor shall furnish to the Owner a written proposal for any proposed extension in the period of performance. The proposal shall contain a price breakdown and period of performance extension justification.

#### **ARTICLE 24**

#### SUSPENSION OF WORK

- Owner may order Job Order Contractor, in writing, to suspend, delay, or interrupt all or any part of the Work for the period of time that Owner determines appropriate.
- 24.2 If the performance of all or any part of the Work is suspended, delayed, or interrupted by an act of Owner in the administration of a Job Order, or by Owner's failure to act within the time specified in the Job Order (or within a reasonable time if not specified), an adjustment shall be made for any increase in the cost of overtime for performance of the Job Order necessarily caused by the suspension, delay, or interruption, and the Job Order will be modified in writing accordingly.
- A claim under this Article shall not be allowed for any costs incurred more than thirty (30) calendar days before Job Order Contractor shall have notified Owner in writing of the act or failure to act (but this requirement shall not apply as to a claim resulting from a suspension order), and unless the claim, in an amount stated, is asserted in writing as soon as practicable after the termination of such suspension, delay, or interruption, but not later than the date of final payment under the Job Order.

# ARTICLE 25 DISPUTES

- 25.1 The parties are fully committed to working with each other throughout the term of the Contract and agree to communicate regularly with each other at all times so as to avoid or minimize disputes or disagreements. If disputes or disagreements do arise, Job Order Contractor and Owner each commit to resolving such disputes or disagreements in an amicable, professional and expeditious manner so as to avoid unnecessary losses, delays and disruptions to the Work.
- 25.2 Throughout the course of the dispute resolution process the Job Order Contractor shall continue to perform the Work and Owner shall continue to satisfy its payment obligations to Job Order Contractor, pending the final resolution of any dispute or disagreements between the parties.
- 25.3 Dispute Resolution Level I: Job Order Contractor and Owner will first attempt to resolve disputes or disagreements at the field level through discussions between the parties' representatives (I.E., the Owner's Project Manager and the Contractor's Project Superintendent).
- 25.4 Dispute Resolution Level II: Any dispute not satisfactorily resolved at the field level shall be submitted to the Owner's Designee (listed below), in written form ("Notice of Dispute"), within thirty (30) days of the date of occurrence of the event leading to or giving rise to the dispute. Said Notice of Dispute shall include a clear description of the issue and the proposed remedy. The Owner's Designee shall render his/her decision in writing, and mail or otherwise furnish a copy thereof to the Job Order Contractor within twenty (20) days of receipt.

Owner designates the individual listed below as its representative under Paragraph 25.4, which individual has the authority and responsibility for avoiding and resolving disputes under this Contract.

Gregory Forsyth Director, Capital Projects 2815 E. Garland Spokane, WA 99207 509-354-5775

Contractor designates the individual listed below as its representative under Paragraph 25.4, which individual has the authority and responsibility for avoiding and resolving disputes under this Contract.

Name	Title
Address	City, State, Zip
Telephone Number	

- 25.5 Failure to properly submit the Notice of Dispute as outlined above shall constitute waiver of the dispute and any potential Claim.
- 25.6 Any dispute not finally resolved under this Article may be brought before the state courts of the State of Washington and adjudicated in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington.

#### **ARTICLE 26**

# TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE OF OWNER

- 26.1 Owner may terminate performance of the Work under this Contract in whole or, from time to time, in part if Owner determines that termination is in Owner's interest. Owner shall effect such termination by delivering to Job Order Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the extent of termination and the effective date.
- 26.2 After receipt of a Notice of Termination, and except as directed by Owner, Job Order Contractor shall immediately proceed with the following obligations, regardless of any delay in determining or adjusting any amounts due under this Article:
  - a. Stop work as specified in the notice;
  - b. Place no further subcontracts or orders (referred to as subcontracts in this Article) for materials, services or facilities, except as necessary to complete any Work not terminated;
  - c. Assign to Owner, as directed by Owner, all right, title, and interest of Job Order Contractor under the subcontracts to the extent they relate to the Work terminated, in which case Owner shall have the right to settle or to pay any termination settlement proposal arising out of those terminations, or with approval or ratification to the extent required by Owner, settle all outstanding liabilities and termination settlement

proposals arising from the termination of subcontracts, the approval or ratification of which will be final for purposes of this Article;

- d. As directed by Owner, transfer title and deliver to Owner:
  - i. The fabricated or unfabricated parts, Work in process, completed Work, supplies, and other material produced or acquired for the Work terminated, and
  - ii. The completed or partially completed plans, drawings, information, and other property that, if the Contract had been completed, would be required to be furnished to Owner;
- e. Complete performance of the Work not terminated;
- f. Take any action that may be necessary, or that Owner may direct, for the protection and preservation of the property related to this Contract that is in the possession of Job Order Contractor and in which Owner has or may acquire an interest;
- g. Use its best efforts to sell, as directed or authorized by Owner, any property of the types referred to in this paragraph 26.2; provided, however, that Job Order Contractor is not required to extend credit to any purchaser and may acquire the property under the conditions prescribed by, and at prices approved by, Owner. The proceeds of any transfer or disposition will be applied to reduce any payments to be made by Owner under the Contract, credited to the price or cost of the Work, or paid in any other manner directed by Owner.
- After termination, Job Order Contractor shall submit a final termination settlement proposal to Owner in the form and with the certification prescribed by Owner. Job Order Contractor shall submit the proposal promptly, but no later than one year from the effective date of termination.
- 26.4 Job Order Contractor and Owner may agree upon the whole or any part of the amount to be paid because of the termination. The Contract shall be amended, and Job Order Contractor paid the agreed amount.
- 26.5 If Job Order Contractor and Owner fail to agree on the whole amount to be paid Job Order Contractor because of the termination of work, Owner shall pay Job Order Contractor the amounts determined as follows, but without duplication of any amounts agreed upon under Paragraph 26.4 above:
  - a. For Work performed before the effective date of termination, the total (without duplication of any items) of:
    - i. The cost of this Work based on Section 9, number 2 and Section 9, number 3 hereto;
    - ii. The cost of settling and paying termination settlement proposals under terminated subcontracts that are properly chargeable to the terminated portion of the Contract if not included in subdivision (i) above; and
  - b. The reasonable costs of settlement of the Work terminated, including:
    - i. Accounting, legal, clerical, and other expenses reasonably necessary for the preparation of termination settlement proposals and supporting data;
    - ii. The termination and settlement of subcontracts (excluding the amounts of such settlements); and
    - iii. Storage, transportation, and other costs incurred, reasonably necessary for the preservation, protection, or disposition of the termination inventory.

- 26.6 Except for normal spoilage, and except to the extent that Owner expressly assumed the risk of loss, Owner shall exclude from the amounts payable to Job Order Contractor under Paragraph 26.5 above, the fair value, as determined by Owner, of property that is destroyed, lost, stolen, or damaged so as to become undeliverable to Owner or to a buyer.
- 26.7 In arriving at the amount due Job Order Contractor under this Article, there shall be deducted:
  - a. All unliquidated advances or other payments to Job Order Contractor under the terminated portion of the Job Order;
  - b. Any claim which Owner has against Job Order Contractor under the Contract; and
  - c. The agreed price for, or the proceeds of sale of, materials, supplies, or other things acquired by Job Order Contractor or sold under the provisions of this Article and not recovered by or credited to Owner.
- 26.8 If the termination is partial, Job Order Contractor may file a proposal with Owner for an equitable adjustment of the price(s) of the continued portion of the Job Order. Any proposal by Job Order Contractor for an equitable adjustment under this Article shall be requested within ninety (90) calendar days from the effective date of termination unless extended in writing by Owner. Owner may, under the terms and conditions it prescribes, make partial payments and payments against costs incurred by Job Order Contractor of the terminated portion of the Job Order, if Owner believes the total of these payments will not exceed the amount to which Job Order Contractor will be entitled.
- 26.9 If the total payments exceed the amount finally determined to be due, Job Order Contractor shall repay the excess to Owner upon demand.
- 26.10 Unless otherwise provided in this Contract or by statute, Job Order Contractor shall maintain all records and documents relating to the terminated portion of this Contract for five (5) years after final settlement. This includes all books and other evidence bearing on Job Order Contractor's costs and expenses under this Contract. Job Order Contractor shall make these records and documents available to Owner, at Job Order Contractor's office, at all reasonable times, without cost. If approved by Owner, photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproductions may be maintained instead of original records and documents.

#### **ARTICLE 27**

#### **DEFAULT**

- 27.1 If Job Order Contractor refuses or fails to prosecute the Work, or any separable part, with the diligence that will ensure its completion within the time specified in the Job Order including any extension, or fails to complete the Work within this time, Owner may terminate the Job Order Contractor's right to proceed with the Work (or separable part of the Work), upon thirty (30) days written notice to the Job Order Contractor. In this event, Owner may take over the Work and complete it by Contract or otherwise and may take possession of and use any materials, appliances, and plant on the site necessary for completing the Work.
- 27.2 Job Order Contractor's right to proceed shall not be terminated under this Article, if:
  - a. The delay in completing the Work arises from unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of Job Order Contractor. Examples of such causes include:
    - i. acts of God or of the public enemy,
    - ii. acts of Owner in its Contractual capacity,

- iii. acts of another Contractor in the performance of a Contract with Owner,
- iv. fires,
- v. floods,
- vi. epidemics,
- vii. quarantine restrictions,
- viii. strikes,
- ix. freight embargoes,
- x. unusually severe weather (The basis used to define normal weather will be data showing high and low temperatures, precipitation, and number of days of severe weather in the city closest to the site for the previous ten (10) years, as compiled by the United States Department of Commerce National Weather Service.), or
- xi. delays of subcontractors or suppliers at any tier arising from unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of both Job Order Contractor and the subcontractors or suppliers; and
- b. Job Order Contractor, within 30 calendar days from the beginning of any such delay (unless extended by Owner), notifies Owner in writing of the causes of delay. The Owner shall ascertain the facts and the extent of delay. If, in the judgment of Owner, the findings of fact warrant such action, the time for completing the Work shall be extended. The findings of Owner shall be final and conclusive on the parties, but subject to appeal and review under Article 25.
- 27.3 If, after termination of Job Order Contractor's right to proceed, it is determined that Job Order Contractor was not in default, or that the delay was excusable, the rights and obligations of the parties will be the same as if the termination had been issued for the convenience of Owner.
- 27.4 The rights and remedies of Owner in this Article are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this Contract.

#### **ARTICLE 28**

# **SAFETY**

28.1 Job Order Contractor shall be responsible for compliance with all safety rules and regulations of the Federal Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (OSHA), all applicable state including WISHA and local laws, ordinances, and regulations during the performance of the Work. Job Order Contractor shall indemnify Owner for fines, penalties, and corrective measures that result from the acts of commission or omission of Job Order Contractor, its subcontractors, if any, agents, employees, and assigns and its failure to comply with such safety rules and regulations.

- 28.2 Job Order Contractor shall furnish and enforce the use of individual personnel / site protective equipment as needed to complete the Work, including, but not limited to, hard hats, rain gear, protective foot wear, protective clothing and gloves, eye protection, ear protection, respirators, safety belts, safety harnesses, safety lifelines and lanyards, and high visibility reflective safety vests.
- 28.3 Job Order Contractor shall provide its employees safety training to include special training prior to working with hazardous materials or operations.
- 28.4 Job Order Contractor shall provide warning signs, barricades and verbal warnings as required.
- 28.5 Job Order Contractor shall inform its employees of emergency procedures to be adhered to in case of a fire, medical emergency, or any other life-threatening situations.
- 28.6 Job Order Contractor shall promptly notify Owner of any accident involving personnel or damage to material and equipment. Copies of any injury reports or accident investigation reports shall be provided to the Owner.
- 28.7 Job Order Contractor shall maintain a set of WISHA articles at the jobsite as they apply to the Work being performed. Copies shall be provided to Owner when requested.
- Job Order Contractor shall submit to Owner a copy of its safety policies and program procedures which establish the safety rules and regulations as they are to be applied to performance of the Work. These documents shall be submitted by Job Order Contractor within fourteen (14) calendar days after issuance of a Job Order and prior to the commencement of the Work.
- 28.9 Job Order Contractor shall assign, during performance of the Work, a designated safety representative to develop and monitor the project safety program. The name, company address, and telephone number of the assigned individual shall be submitted to Owner by Job Order Contractor along with its safety policies and program procedures.
- 28.10 Job Order Contractor shall provide and maintain on the jobsite, at all times, completely stocked first aid kit(s) which contains all standard emergency medical supplies in accordance with WAC.
- 28.11 Job Order Contractor shall make available for its employees and those of its subcontractors, while they are performing Work on the site, emergency medical treatment either at the site or at a nearby medical facility.
- 28.12 Owner reserves the right to approve and monitor Job Order Contractor's safety policies and program procedures as applied during performance of the Work. Failure to comply with safety policies and program procedures, once approved by Owner, shall be cause for the termination of the Job Order in accordance with Article 27.

### **ARTICLE 29**

### USE AND POSSESSION PRIOR TO COMPLETION

29.1 Owner shall have the right to take possession of or use any completed or partially completed part of the Work. Before taking possession of or using any work, Owner shall furnish Job Order Contractor a list of items of work remaining to be performed or corrected on those portions of the Work that Owner intends to take possession of or use. However, failure of Owner to list any item of work shall not relieve Job Order Contractor of responsibility for complying with the terms of this Contract. Owner possession or use shall not be deemed an acceptance of any work under this Contract.

While Owner has such possession or use, Job Order Contractor shall be relieved of the responsibility for the loss of or damage to the Work resulting from Owner's possession or use, notwithstanding the terms of Article 6. If prior possession or use by Owner delays the progress of the Work or causes additional expense to Job Order Contractor, an equitable adjustment shall be made in the Job Order price or the period of performance, and the Job Order shall be modified in writing accordingly.

#### **ARTICLE 30**

#### OTHER CONTRACTS

30.1 Owner may undertake or award other Contracts for additional work at or near the site of Work under this Contract. Job Order Contractor shall fully cooperate with the other general Contractors and with Owner's employees and shall carefully adapt scheduling and performing the Work under this Contract to accommodate the additional work, heeding any direction that may be provided by Owner. Job Order Contractor shall not commit or permit any act that will interfere with the performance of work by any other general Contractor or by Owner's employees.

#### **ARTICLE 31**

## DISSEMINATION OF CONTRACT INFORMATION

31.1 Job Order Contractor shall not publish, permit to be published, or distribute for public consumption, any information, oral or written, concerning this Contract, any Job Order or the Work performed under this Contract, without the prior consent of Owner.

#### **ARTICLE 32**

# PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BONDS

32.1 Job Order Contractor shall furnish Performance and Payment Bonds from a Bonding Company licensed to do business in the State of Washington, rated A or better of AM Best, each in an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the Work, in a penal amount equal to the aggregate price of all Job Orders issued to the Job Order Contractor, but not less than \$50,000. The Performance and Payment Bonds must be submitted to Owner within ten (10) calendar days after issuance of a Job Order. A Notice to Proceed will not be issued until properly executed bonds are received and accepted by Owner. If bonds are required, Owner shall reimburse Job Order Contractor the premium cost after submission of proof of premium payment. Job Order Contractor shall reconcile annually with their respective bonding company on the then current total penal sum amount of the contract of active Job Orders and Job Orders under warranty. Increases in the penal sum of the bonds will be provided promptly by Job Order Contractor, unless waived by Owner.

#### **ARTICLE 33**

#### RETAINAGE ACCOUNT / RETAINAGE BOND

- 33.1 In accordance with RCW 60.28, a sum not to exceed five percent (5%) of each Invoice shall be reserved after award of a Contract for public improvements, or work for which retained percentages are required to be reserved under the provision of RCW 60.28. Retainage will not be released until sixty (60) days following the Final Acceptance of the Work, or until receipt of all necessary releases from the Department of Labor and Industries, Department of Revenue, and Department of Employment Security, and any settlement of any lien filed under Chapter 60.28 R.C.W., whichever is later, as provided for in R.C.W. 39.08.010. Retainage will be held in one of the following two manners as directed by Job Order Contractor:
  - (a) The retained percentages will be held in a fund by the Owner.
  - (b) RCW 60.28.011(6) allows a contractor to submit a retainage bond for all or any portion of the contract retainage in a form acceptable to the Owner and from a bonding company meeting standards established by the Owner.

#### **ARTICLE 34**

# **INSURANCE**

- 34.1 Job Order Contractor shall purchase and maintain in effect during the term of this Contract insurance of the types and with minimum limits of liability as stated below. Such insurance shall protect Job Order Contractor from claims which may arise out of or result from Job Order Contractor's operations whether such operations are performed by Job Order Contractor or by any subcontractor or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable.
  - a. WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE providing statutory benefits in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington or any Federal statutes as may be applicable to the Work being performed under this Contract.

EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY INSURANCE with limits of liability not less than:

\$1,000,000	Each Accident
\$1,000,000	Each Employee for Disease
\$1,000,000	Policy Limit for Disease

b. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE including Products/Completed Operations and Contractual Liability with limits of liability not less than:

\$2,000,000	General Aggregate
\$2,000,000	Products/Completed Operations Aggregate
\$1,000,000	Each Occurrence

c. AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE covering all owned, hired and non-owned motor vehicles used in connection with the Work being performed under this Contract with limits of liability not less than:

\$1,000,000 Each Person for Bodily Injury \$1,000,000 Each Accident for Bodily Injury \$1,000,000 Each Occurrence for Property Damage

- 34.2 The policies providing Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability insurance as required in Paragraphs b and c shall be endorsed to name Owner as Additional Insured with the Additional Insured Endorsement Attached. Certificate shall also include the A.M. Best rating on the insurance company providing coverage. Such insurance as is provided herein shall be primary and non-contributing with any other valid and collectible insurance available to Owner.
- 34.3 All policies providing Job Order Contractor's insurance as required in Paragraph 34.1 above shall be endorsed to provide the following:
  - a. Thirty days written notice of cancellation or non-renewal given to Owner at the address designated in Article 37.
  - b. Waiver of subrogation in favor of Owner.
- 34.4 The limits of liability as required above may be provided by a single policy of insurance or by a combination of primary, excess or umbrella policies. But in no event shall the total limits of liability available for any one occurrence or accident be less that the amount required above.
- 34.5 Proof of compliance with these insurance requirements shall be furnished Owner in the form of an original certificate of insurance signed by an authorized representative or agent of the insurance company(ies) within ten (10) days of execution of this agreement. Renewal or replacement certificates shall be furnished Owner not less than twenty-one (21) days prior to the expiration or termination date of the applicable policy(ies).
- 34.6 Job Order Contractor shall require any and all subcontractors performing Work under this Contract to carry insurance of the types and with limits of liability as Job Order Contractor shall deem appropriate and adequate for the Work being performed. Job Order Contractor shall obtain and make available for inspection by Owner upon request current certificates of insurance evidencing insurance coverages carried by such subcontractors.

#### **ARTICLE 35**

#### **INDEMNIFICATION**

35.1 Job Order Contractor agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Owner, its officers, agents and employees, and any jurisdiction or agency issuing permits for any Work, its officers, agents and employees, from all suits, including attorney's fees and cost of litigation, actions, loss, damage, expense, cost or claims of any character or any nature arising out of the Work done in fulfillment of a Job Order issued under this Contract or on account of any act, claim or amount arising or recovered under Workers' Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of the Job Order Contractor to conform to any statutes, ordinances, regulation, law or court decree.

#### **ARTICLE 36**

#### CONTRACT ORDER OF PRECEDENCE

- 36.1 In the event of an inconsistency between provisions of this Contract, the inconsistency shall be resolved by giving precedence in the following order:
  - a. Contract Modifications, if any;
  - b. The Contract
  - c. Job Orders:
  - d. Drawings (specific to the individual Job Order);
  - e. Specifications (specific to the individual Job Order); and
  - f. Spokane Public Schools Best Practices Manual Construction

#### **ARTICLE 37**

#### **NOTICES**

- 37.1 All notices to either party by the other shall be delivered personally or sent by first class United States mail, registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed to such party at the following respective addresses for each:
  - a. Owner:
  - b. Job Order Contractor:

and shall be deemed given on the date so delivered or so deposited in the mail, unless otherwise provided herein. Either party hereto may change the above address by sending written notice of such change of address to the other in the manner provided for above.

# **ARTICLE 38**

#### **SEVERABILITY**

38.1 If any provision of this Contract, or the application thereof to any person or circumstances is rendered or declared illegal for any reason or shall be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Contract and the application of such provision to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby but shall be enforced to the greatest extent permitted by applicable law. The parties agree to negotiate in good faith for a proper amendment to this Contract in the event any provision hereof is declared illegal, invalid, or unenforceable.

# **ARTICLE 39**

#### **WAIVERS**

- 39.1 Neither Owner's review, approval or acceptance of, nor payment for, the Work required under this Contract shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Contract or of any cause of action arising out of the performance of the Contract, and Job Order Contractor shall be and remain liable to Owner in accordance with applicable law and the terms of this Contract for all damages to Owner caused by Job Order Contractor's negligent act, error or omission in the performance of any of the Work.
- 39.2 The waiver by Owner of any breach of any term, covenant, condition, or agreement herein contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same, or of a breach of any other term, covenant, condition, or agreement herein contained.

#### **ARTICLE 40**

#### **MERGER**

40.1 This Contract and all procurement documents incorporated by reference set forth the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter thereof, and supersedes and replaces all proposals, negotiations, representations, and implied obligations. The obligations, liabilities and remedies set forth herein are exclusive and shall operate as limitations on any action brought in connection with the Work, including an action in tort.

#### **ARTICLE 41**

#### NON-AVAILABILTY OF FUNDS

41.1 Every payment obligation of the Owner under this Contract is conditioned upon the availability of funds appropriated or allocated for the payment of such obligation. If funds are not allocated and available for the continuance of this Contract, this Contract may be terminated by the Owner at the end of the period for which funds are available.

#### **ARTICLE 42**

#### AUDIT OF RECORDS

42.1 Pursuant to applicable laws, the Job Order Contractor shall retain and shall contractually require each subcontractor to retain all data, books, and other records ("records") relating to this Contract for a period of five years after completion of this Contract. All records shall be subject to inspection and audit by Spokane Public Schools at reasonable times. Upon request, the Contractor shall produce the original of any or all such records. If approved by Owner, photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproductions may be maintained instead of original records and documents.

# **ARTICLE 43**

#### NON-DISCRIMINATION

43.1 In the performance of this Contract, Job Order Contractor assures compliance with state and federal guidelines and regulations regarding nondiscrimination and harassment involving any employee/student on the basis of race, color, gender, religion, national origin, creed, marital status, age, sexual orientation, pregnancy, or the presence of any sensory, mental, or physical disability in employment, services, or any other benefits under the Contract. The Job Order Contractor shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants for employment and employees are not discriminated against due to race, color, gender, religion, national origin, creed, marital status, age, sexual orientation, pregnancy, or the presence of any sensory, mental, or physical disability.

#### **ARTICLE 44**

# THIRD PARTY ANTITRUST VIOLATIONS

44.1 The Job Order Contractor assigns to the Owner any claim for overcharges, resulting from antitrust violations to

the extent that such violations concern materials or services supplied by third parties to the Job Order Contractor toward fulfillment of this Contract.

# **ARTICLE 45**

# INTERPRETATION, JURISDICTION AND VENUE

This Contract shall be construed and interpreted solely in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington arisdiction and venue for any suit, right or cause of action arising under or in connection with this Contract shall acclusively in Washington State.						
	as been executed by and on behalf of the Job Order Contractor on the executed by and on behalf of Owner the day of					
JOB ORDER CONTRACTOR:	SPOKANE PUBLIC SCHOOLS:					
By						
Name:	Cindy Coleman					
Title:	Chief Finance and Business Services Officer					

# 2. CONTRACT PRICING COEFFICIENTS

- 1.0 Job Order Contractor shall furnish all supervision, labor, materials, tools, supplies, equipment, transportation, insurance, taxes, overhead and profit to perform all operations necessary and required in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract, and as further specified in individual Job Orders.
- 2.0 Coefficients.
- 2.1 Coefficient for Standard Hours: X.XXX
- 2.2 Coefficient for Non-Standard Hours: X.XXX
- 3.0 Pricing the Work.
- 3.1 The actual pricing for work performed under the Contract will be based on the mutually agreed quantities applied to the "Total including O&P column" rates contained in the Unit Price Book, modified by the City of Spokane total weighted average City Cost Index, as adjusted by application of the appropriate coefficient as set forth above.
- 3.2 Excluded Sections of the Unit Price Book. The following sections of the Unit Price Book are not allowable for use and inclusion when pricing proposals:

Construction Management Fees Contingencies Overtime thru Taxes Performance Bond thru Scheduling Office thru Field Office Expense Small Tools Commissioning

- 4.0 Hours of Work.
- 4.1 Standard hours of work will be from 7:00 AM to 5:00 PM, Monday through Friday, unless alternate standard hours are agreed to and adopted.
- 4.2 Non-standard hours are hours required by Owner to be worked before 7:00 AM and after 5:00 PM (unless alternate standard hours are agreed and adopted), Monday thru Friday, and all hours worked on Saturdays, Sundays and holidays will be considered non-standard hours.
- 4.3 Non-standard hours worked by Job Order Contractor to regain schedule or for Job Order Contractor's convenience shall not be entitled to application of the Coefficient for Non-standard hours.

# 3. SCOPE OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

1.0	GENERAL INFORMATION
2.0	DOCUMENTS
3.0	WORK AUTHORIZATION
4.0	SCHEDULING AND COMPLETION OF WORK
5.0	JOB ORDER CLOSEOUT
6.0	QUARTERLY/ANNUAL REPORT
7.0	QUALITY ASSURANCE/QUALITY CONTROL PROGRAM
8.0	DESIGN
9.0	CONTRACTOR'S PROJECT SUPERINTENDENT
10.0	JOC PROJECT SUPPORT REQUIREMENTS
11.0	OWNER-FURNISHED UTILITIES
12.0	CONTRACTOR LOCAL OFFICE

# 1.0 GENERAL INFORMATION:

This is a fixed unit-price, indefinite quantity type Contract for the performance of a broad range of construction services to include, but not be limited to, minor construction, modernization, renovations, and alteration projects on an as-needed basis as required by Spokane Public Schools. The specific work requirements will be defined in Job Orders to be issued by Spokane Public Schools Capital Projects Office.

#### **2.0 DOCUMENTS:**

The following documents shall be used in the generation and execution of work under this Contract:

- 2.1 The currently applicable (current version for the site of the Work) Unit Price Book, RS Means Facilities, contains pricing information for the Work to be accomplished in the unit of measure specified. The Unit Price Book will be updated effective upon receipt by Job Order Contractor of any periodic updating. Previously issued Job Orders and Changes will not be retroactively repriced although any Changes priced after receipt of an update will be priced by the updated version of the Unit Price Book.
- **2.2** The Construction Specifications Institute (CSI) construction specifications in effect at Contract signing shall be the specifications under this Contract.
- 2.3 The Job Order Contractor must provide the Owner with a MWBE Outreach Plan that equitably spreads subcontracting opportunities. The MWBE Outreach Plan must be approved by the Owner prior to any Job Orders being issued under the Job Order Contract.
- 2.4 The Job Order Contractor is required to publish notification of intent to perform public works projects at the beginning of each contract year in a statewide publication and in a legal newspaper of general circulation in Spokane County. Contractor shall provide Spokane Public Schools with Affidavits evidencing this requirement.
- 2.5 AIA Masterspec shall be utilized to organize and sub-total Job Order pricing by relevant division(s).
- **2.6** Spokane Public Schools General Terms and Conditions shall be adhered to in all instances.
- **2.7** Spokane Public Schools Best Practices Manual Construction shall be utilized to determine the level of quality of fixtures, equipment, and construction.
- **2.8** All relevant National, State, and Local laws, codes, and regulations.

# 3.0 WORK AUTHORIZATION:

Any Work required under this Contract shall be authorized by issuance of formal, written Job Orders, after the contractor provides to Spokane Public Schools an approved plan, developed in consultation with the office of minority and women's business enterprises or the equivalent local agency, that equitably spreads certified women and minority business enterprise subcontracting opportunities, to the extent permitted by the Washington state civil rights act, RCW 49.60.400, among the various subcontract disciplines, as follows:

3.1 As the need exists (as determined by Owner) for performance under the terms of this Contract, Owner will notify Job Order Contractor of an existing requirement by issuing a request for Job Order Proposal.

- **3.2** Upon the receipt of this notification, Job Order Contractor shall respond within two (2) working days, or as otherwise agreed, by:
  - 3.2.1 Visiting the proposed site in the company of Owner, or;
  - 3.2.2 Establishing contact with Owner to further define the scope of the requirement.
- 3.3 After mutual agreement on the scope of the individual requirement, Job Order Contractor shall then prepare a proposal for accomplishment of the task defining and restating the scope and providing a line item proposal of the individual tasks, quantities, costs, and schedule, including any incidental design drawings, specifications, etc., as applicable, unless Job Order Contractor, in its sole discretion, elects not to undertake the Work. If the Work is declined, Job Order Contractor will so notify Owner in a timely manner.
- 3.4 The Unit Price Book shall serve as the basis for establishing the value of the Work to be performed. Less than 20% (i.e., not more than 19.99%) of the dollar value of the Work may consist of items not in the unit price book.
- 3.5 Job Order Contractor's proposal shall be submitted within five (5) working days of receipt of a Request for Job Order Proposal unless otherwise agreed.
- 3.6 Upon receipt of Job Order Contractor's proposal, Owner will review the proposal for completeness and will reach agreement with Job Order Contractor on pricing, schedule, and all other terms, prior to issuance of a Job Order.
- 3.7 Spokane Public Schools will issue a formal Notice to Proceed in the form of a Purchase Order. Attached to the Purchase Order shall be the accepted JOC Job Order proposal. This set of documents shall be known as the "Job Order".
- **3.8** The Job Order is a lump sum, fixed price contract for the agreed upon scope of work.
- 3.9 In the event of emergency requirements for service, the procedures above will be expedited upon receipt of a verbal Job Order by Spokane Public Schools Director of Capital Projects, Gregory Forsyth, or his designated representative. Work will commence as required and documentation will be provided as soon as possible.
- **3.10** In the event Owner does not issue a Job Order after receipt of Job Order Contractor's proposal, Owner is not obligated to reimburse Job Order Contractor for any costs incurred in the preparation of the proposal.

#### 4.0 SCHEDULING AND COMPLETION OF WORK:

4.1 For each project, Spokane Public Schools will issue a Purchase Order that will act as the official "Notice to Proceed" and will contain the negotiated and approved Job Order Proposal. Any preliminary work started or materials ordered or purchased before receipt of the Job Order shall be at the risk and expense of the Contractor. The Contractor shall diligently prosecute the Work to completion within the time set forth in the Job Order. The period of performance includes allowance for mobilization, holidays, weekend days, normal inclement weather, and cleanup, therefore, claims for delay based on these elements will not be allowed. When the Contractor considers the Work complete and ready for its intended use, the Contractor shall request Spokane Public Schools to inspect the Work to determine the status of completion. When Spokane Public Schools determines the Work to be substantially complete, Spokane Public Schools will issue a Certificate of

Substantial Completion with a list of items to be completed or corrected prior to final payment of the Job Order. The Contractor shall proceed promptly to complete and correct items on the list.

- **4.2** Job placement of materials and equipment shall be approved by the Owner so as to ensure minimum interference to Owner operations and personnel.
- **4.3** Furniture and portable office equipment in the immediate work area will be moved by the Job Order Contractor and replaced to its original location. If the furniture and portable office equipment cannot be replaced to its original location, Spokane Public Schools will designate new locations. If furniture and portable office equipment (or other items) must be moved and/or stored outside the immediate area, Owner will compensate Job Order Contractor for any such transportation and storage costs incurred.
- **4.4** The Job Order Contractor shall take all precautions to ensure that no damage will result from its operations to private or public property. All damages shall be reported to Owner's Project Manager, and then repaired or replaced by the Job Order Contractor at no cost to Owner.
- **4.5** The Job Order Contractor shall be responsible for providing all necessary traffic control,(motor/pedestrian) such as permits, street blockages, traffic cones, flagmen, etc., as well as any necessary safety fencing, barriers, netting, or other measures as required for each Job Order at no additional cost to Owner.
- **4.6** The Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining all required permits. Owner will pay directly the permitting office.

# **5.0 JOB ORDER CLOSEOUT:**

Upon completion of the work, submit for Owner's review the following items as applicable in a format provided by Spokane Public Schools:

- 5.1 Warranty Certificates
- 5.2 Summary cost breakdown by contractor to include JOC and subcontractors, identifying any minority or women owned business
- 5.3 Certificate of occupancy
- 5.4 As-built drawings
- 5.5 Operations and Maintenance Manuals "O&M's".
- 5.6 Retainage Invoice (If applicable)
- 5.7 State approved Affidavit of Wages Paid.

#### **6.0 QUARTERLY/ANNUAL REPORTING:**

The Job Order Contractor shall submit to Owner **quarterly** reports in a format provided by Owner to include at a minimum the following:

- 6.1 MWBE statistics to date
- 6.2 Aggregate to date cost breakdown
- 6.3 Total number of Job Orders to date
- 6.4 Total number of Job Orders completed to date
- 6.5 Total dollar value of Job Orders assigned to date but not completed
- 6.6 Total dollar value of invoice submitted to date
- 6.7 Dollar value ratio of Work completed to date by subcontractors vs Job Order Contractor
- 6.8 A list of subcontractors hired under each work order.
- 6.9 Total number of standard to non-standard hours worked to date

The Job Order Contractor shall submit to Owner at the end of each contract year an **annual** report to include at a minimum the following:

- 6.10 The contract year listing of work orders issued;
- 6.11 The cost of each work order issued during the contract year.
- 6.12 A listing of subcontractors hired under each work order during the contract year.
- 6.13 Other information as requested by the Owner.
- 6.14. Shall submit to the Owner, the State CPARB JOC Public Body Annual Survey Report for review and comment prior to Owner submitting the CPARB Report to the State Review Board.

# 7.0 QUALITY ASSURANCE/QUALITY CONTROL PROGRAM:

The Job Order Contractor shall submit, for Owners approval, a Quality Assurance/Quality Control Plan within fifteen (15) calendar days after Contract Award. This plan should address all aspects of quality control including responsibility for surveillance of work, documentation, trend analysis, corrective action and interface with Owners inspectors.

#### 8.0 DESIGN:

Job Order Contractor's duties under the Contract include the preparation of shop drawings or sketches necessary to permit orderly construction of Owner's design plans. Job Order Contractor agrees to provide detailed design drawings and plans associated with specific work orders if requested by Owner.

#### 9.0 CONTRACTOR'S PROJECT SUPERINTENDENT:

The Job Order Contractor's Project Superintendent shall be knowledgeable in multiple disciplines including, but not limited to: carpentry, concrete, electrical, mechanical, HVAC, paving, landscaping, painting, roofing, plumbing, safety, and other general construction practices and standards. The Project Superintendent's background and credentials must be acceptable to Owner, and should the designated Project Superintendent become unavailable for any reason Owner reserves the right to make final approval of any proposed replacement. Registration as a Professional Engineer in the State of Washington is desirable, but not required.

# 10.0 JOC PROJECT SUPPORT REQUIREMENTS:

- 10.1 Computer: The Contractor is to provide, and maintain in an operational condition, at least one computer system for the Contractor's JOC staff use. The Contractor shall provide all installation, removal, repair, maintenance, and updates to this system. Computer system repair, maintenance, update, or replacement action shall be promptly initiated by the Contractor as needed; all such actions shall be completed and the affected computer system shall be fully operational within twenty-four (24) hours. The contractor will provide a communication link for connection of his computer to the Spokane Public Schools Computer System, or to the Internet (at the discretion of the Owner).
- **10.2** Computer Software: The Contractor shall provide the following software for his local office and to support the Spokane Public Schools JOC Project Staff:
  - **10.2.1** The Contractor will provide computer software that will provide the user with an automated version of the Unit Price Book items and price information, allow the user to select the desired Unit Price Book items and

quantities from the automated listings, and based on these selections will extend and total the Unit Price Book costs for project proposals. At least one copy of this software shall also be provided to Spokane Public Schools after Contract Award.

- **10.2.2** The supplier of the JOC software may from time to time issue updates to, or replacements for the software. All changes and updates to the software will be made by the contractor and a new copy of the software will be furnished to Spokane Public Schools. The Contractor shall promptly install the new software, at no additional cost to Spokane Public Schools, and shall provide Spokane Public Schools with computer printouts that adequately verify the incorporation of these changes.
- **10.2.3** The Contractor shall not alter, append, delete or otherwise modify the programming, Unit Price Book items, or prices contained in JOC software, unless otherwise directed by the Spokane Public Schools.
- **10.2.4** Each project proposal submitted by the Contractor shall contain a computer-generated printout of all proposed Unit Price Book items, quantities, extended prices, and total proposed cost.
- **10.3** The Contractor shall provide a copy of Microsoft Word and Microsoft Excel (Office 2003 or later version) or other approved equal, for general communication, memorandum writing, and documentation of project notes.
- 10.4 The Contractor shall provide an appropriate electronic mail ("email") software that will facilitate electronic communication between the JOC project management staff and Spokane Public Schools staff.

# 11. OWNER - FURNISHED UTILITIES:

Owner shall provide at no cost to Job Order Contractor utilities and toilet facilities that are existing and available at each site for Work performed under the Contract. If utilities and/or toilet facilities are not existing and available, an equitable price will be negotiated and included in the Job Order to compensate Job Order Contractor for providing such items.

#### **11.1** Water:

Owner shall furnish to Job Order Contractor from existing Owner facilities and without cost to Job Order Contractor, a supply of water necessary for the performance of work under this Contract. Owner will in no case furnish or install any required supply connections and piping for the purpose of implementing the availability of the water supply. It is the responsibility of Job Order Contractor to determine the extent to which existing Owner water supply source is adequate for the needs of the Contract.

All taps, connections, and accessory equipment required in making the water supply source available will be accomplished by and at the expense of Job Order Contractor. All work in connection therewith shall be coordinated, scheduled, and performed as directed and approved by Owner. Said taps, connections, and accessory equipment shall be maintained by Job Order Contractor in a workmanlike manner in accordance with the rules and regulations of the local authority.

Upon completion of this Contract the removal of all taps, connections and accessories will be accomplished by and at the expense of Job Order Contractor so as to leave the water supply source and facility in its original condition. Such removal shall also be subject to the approval of Owner.

#### **11.2** Electricity:

Owner shall furnish to Job Order Contractor from existing Owner facilities and without cost to Job Order Contractor, electricity necessary for the performance of work under this Contract. It is the responsibility of Job Order Contractor to determine the extent to which existing Owner electrical facilities are adequate for the needs of this Contract.

All taps, connections, and necessary equipment required in making the electrical power available will be accomplished by and at the expense of Job Order Contractor. All work in connection therewith shall be coordinated, scheduled and performed as directed and approved by Owner. Said taps, connections, and accessory equipment shall be maintained by Job Order Contractor in a workmanlike manner in accordance with the rules and regulations of the local authority.

Upon completion of this Contract the removal of all taps, connections and accessories will be accomplished by and at the expense of Job Order Contractor so as to leave the electrical power source and facility in its original condition. Such removal shall also be subject to the approval of Owner.

## 12.0 CONTRACTOR LOCAL OFFICE:

- 12.1 The Contractor shall be required to furnish and maintain a fully operational local office within Spokane County it is preferred that the local office be sited within the boundaries of Spokane Public Schools.
- 12.2 The Contractor shall be responsible for furnishing a copier, LAN line telephone, cell phone for project superintendent and all key JOC staff, FAX machine, office furnishings and supplies, and all other items necessary for the operation of the local office.

#### RFP EXHIBIT A

#### LETTER OF INVITATION FOR A FIRM INTERVIEW

(sample)

-	_	
п	100	4~
	124	10

Company Address City, State Zip

RE: RFP No. 14-2223 Job Order Contracting Services

Dear: Name

I am pleased to inform you that your firm has been selected for further consideration to provide Job Order Contracting (JOC) services for the above referenced project. Your interview has been scheduled for **time**, day and date , 2023 at the Support Services Center, 2815 E. Garland, Spokane, WA 99201 in Room 106, Facilities Conference Center. The interview period is scheduled for one hour. Agenda for the interview is noted below.

Person(s) with whom the Spokane Public Schools will be working most closely for the duration of the project should be at the interview and be part of the oral presentation. (Maximum of 4)

Should you have any further questions regarding the interview process, please call me at 509-354-7186.

Sincerely,

Barb Carson Purchasing Services

# EXHIBIT B

Total Vendors 105 As of 10/03/1815

# in each category

105		TO FILTER BY	in each c CATEGORY USED DROP DOWN		
CONTRACTOR	CONTACT	ADDRESS	CITY, STATE	Phone	EMAIL
	Todd Adams,	PO Box 19081	Spokane WA 99219-9081	509-456-0440	adamscarpet@q.com
Adams Carpet Service Inc	Robert Myers, Sabine Adams, Chris Adams				
Advanced Electric & Alarm Systems Inc	Randy Imes, Rusty Imes, Mike Kelly	11401 E Montgomery Ste 3	Spokane WA 99206	509-534-2526	rustyimes@advelectric.com; randyimes@advelectric.com
Air Control Heating & Electric	Harry Tefft, Lylle Weiss	7203 E Nora Ave	Spokane Valley WA 99212	509-924-0018	harry@aircontrolspokane.com; llyle@aircontrolspokane.com
All Wall Contracting Inc	Roy Glisson	723 S Lochsa St	Post Falls ID 83854	208-773-4650	glissonroy@allwallinc.com
AM Landshaper Inc	Mark Albin, Tye McGee	8004 N Market	Spokane WA 99217	509-468-4335	amlandshaper@msn.com
Arc Electric & Lighting Corp	Marvin Seal, Dale Deubel	5524 N Julia St	Spokane WA 99217	509-483-2717	dale@arcelectriccorp.com
Ascent Mechanical and Plumbing Inc	Lonny Spaulding	PO Box 38	Rathdrum ID 83858	208-446-6331	ascentmechanical@yahoo.com
Aztech Electric Inc	Andrew Dahlman Jess Cumpton	5204 E Broadway	Spokane Valley WA 99212	509-536-6200	andy@aztech-electric.com jess@aztech-electric.com
NBI Division of Atlas Boiler & Equipment Co	Bob Dowers Dave Rath	3815 E Trent	Spokane WA 99202	509-535-1300	david@nbiatlasboiler.com
Bacon Concrete Inc	Greg Bacon Bill Bacon	513 E Silver Pines Ct	Colbert WA 99005	509-924-3900	baconconcrete@comcast.net
Baker Construction & Development Inc	Barry Baker	2711 E Sprague	Spokane WA 99202	509-535-3668	bbaker@bakerconstruct.com
Beresford Company	Mike Shaw	1829 10th Ave West 14400 E 32nd Ave	Seattle WA 98119	206-284-6658, 800-433-7112	mikes@chberesford.com
Black Forest Hardwood Floors LLC			9		
Burton Construction Inc	Bryan Dobbs	3915 E Nebraska	Spokane WA 99217	509-468-4932	bryan@burtonconstruction.net
Cameron-Reilly LLC	Mike Reilly Jim Cameron	309 N Park Rd	Spokane Valley WA 99212	509-466-5555	mike@cameron-reilly.com
Camtek Inc	Lorie Stephenson, Don Johnson	PO Box 6520	Spokane WA 99217	509-443-2609	lorie@camtekinc.com; don@camtekinc.com
Centennial Contractors Enterprises Inc	Damon Gardella	505 N Argonne Rd Bidg A	Spokane Valley WA 99212	509-228-9405	dgardella@cce-inc.com
Century Coatings Inc	Randy Osmonson	PO Box 142036	Spokane WA 99214	509-927-4504	centuryrandy@msn.com
Citadel Construction Inc	Roger Johnson	10003 N Division Ste 200	Spokane WA 99218	509-466-2993	roger@citadel-spokane.com
Clearwater Summit Group Inc	Keane Sweet, Ty Ullman, Tim Sweet, Brent Schreiber	PO Box 6470	Spokane WA 99217	509-482-2722	ksweet@clearwatersummitgroup.com; tullman@clearwatersummitgroup.com; tsweet@clearwatersummitgroup.com; bschreiber@clearwatersummitgroup.com
Cobra Building Envelope Contractors	Kimberlee Orr, John Weirich	PO Box 19068	Spokane WA 99219-9068	509-455-4043	kimo@cobraresults.com; johnw@cobraresults.com
Colvico, Inc.	Cory Colvin	2812 N. Pittsburg St.	Spokane WA 99207	509-536-1875	ccolvin@colvicoinc.com
Cypress Electric & Datacom	Mark Wm Manis	PO Box 1474	Spokane WA 99210	800-390-4783	mark@cypresselectrical.com
Dardan Enterprises Inc	Darin Meeks	23567 W Hwy 53	Post Falls ID 83854	208-773-5418	darin@dardaninc.com
Dennis Cleavenger Construction Inc		PO Box 9843	Spokane WA 99209	509-935-7850	dcleav@centurylink.net
DePaolo's Painting inc	John DePaolo, Tom Rogers	3624 E Ferry Ave	Spokane WA 99202	509-482-0825	tom@depaolospainting.com
Dew Drop Sprinklers & andscaping	Doug Matthews, Steve Laut, Gary Matthews	11827 E Trent	Spokane WA 99206	509-922-7168	doug@dewdropnw.com; steve@dewdropnw.com; gary@dewdropnw.com;
OR Scott Construction LC	Dee Scott	4304 E 17th Ave	Spokane WA 99223	509-991-6725	drscottconstruction@gmail.com

Total Vendors

105

As of 10/03/1815

# in each category

	TO FILTER BY CATEGORY USED DROP DOWN MENU					
CONTRACTOR	CONTACT	ADDRESS	CITY, STATE	Phone	EMAIL	
Electric City Inc	Bill Rigsby, Jamie Rigsby, Kevin Miller	PO Box 11707	Spokane Valley WA 99211	509-536-6292	irigsby@electriccitywa.com; service@electriccitywa.com	
ESP Asbestos Abatement Inc	Peter Boeck, Sam Wannamaker, Jeff Robinson, Andi Musengo	1609 E Holyoke Ave	Spokane WA 99217	509-340-9180	espabatement@gmail.com	
Evco Sound & Electronics	Kevin Bauer	3511 E Trent Ave	Spokane WA 99202	509-535-8718	kdbauer@evcosound.com	
Evergreen Fabrication	Jeff Foster, Polly Holman	PO Box 4468	Spokane WA 99220	509-534-9096	evrqrnfab@aol.com	
1st Air Mechanical Inc	Tim Davis, Craig Erickson	PO Box 1539	Mead WA 99021	509-218-2121	firstairmech@q.com	
Five Star Concrete Inc	Chip Mohr Randy Walters	6225 N Malvern Rd	Otis Orchards WA 99027	509-226-1189	fivestarconcreteinc@hotmail.com	
Flaim Brothers Construction	Shawn Flaim	18102 N West Shore Rd	Nine Mile Falls WA 99026	509-953-9608	sflaimconstruction@gmail.com	
Great Floors Commercial Sales	Dan Gamble, Justin Popple, Cliff Garrison	13708 E Indiana	Spokane Valley WA 99216	509-921-6500	d_gamble@greatfloors.com	
Hurliman Heating & Air Conditioning Inc	John Hurliman, Dan A Fuller	515 S Dishman Mica	Spokane WA 99206	509-891-5110	john@hurlimanheating.com; dana@hurlimanheating.com	
Icon Corporation	Jack Johnson, Kathryn Johnson	PO Box 10	Greenacres WA 99016	509-532-1761	iack@iconroofing.com; kathryn@iconroofing.com	
Inland Asphalt Company	Al Hughbanks. Tony Via	PO Box 3366	Spokane WA 99220-3366	509-534-2657 509-536-3129	ahughbanks@oldcastlematerials.com; tvia@oldcastlematerials.com	
IRS Environmental	Robert Reed, Carl Burnham, Maureen Fay	PO Box 15216	Spokane Valley WA 99215	509-927-7867	rob@irsenviro.com; carl@irsenviro.com	
J & J Construction	John Russell	9200 N Market St	Spokane WA 99217	509-468-8557	bigjohn4@comcast.net	
J L B Construction Inc	Joe Bozo	2104 E 35th	Spokane, WA 99203	509-327-2710	mbozo@comcast.net	
J U Contracting Company	Justin Ulmer	53 E Rich	Spokane WA 99207	509-483-4254	jucontracting@gmail.com	
Johnson Controls	Michael Knowles	7918 W, Flight Drive	Spokane WA 99224	509-717-8053	michael.w.knowles@jci.com	
KC Charles, Inc.	Cary Berger	5685 Jergens Rd	Nine Mile Falls WA 99026	509-276-1228	cary@kccharles.com	
Krueger Sheet Metal Company	Bob Starkey, Tracy Johnson	PO Box 2963	Spokane WA 99220	509-489-0221	ti@ksmetal.net	
Larson's Demolition	Jeff Larson, Carol Larson	PO Box 4535	Spokane WA 99220-0535	509-535-7944	larsons@nwadv.com	
Leone & Keeble Inc	Paul Keeble, Craig Leon	PO Box 2747	Spokane WA 99220-2747	509-327-4451	pkeeble@leone-keeble.com; cleone@leone- keeble.com	
Mako Construction & Design LLC	Greg McLin, Erin McLin	1227 S Adams St	Spokane WA 99204	509-413-6697	greg@makoconstructionanddesign.com	
Master's Fence Company	Rick Nordhausen	5928 Davenport St	Dalton Gardens ID 83815	208-755-1142	mastersfence@gmail.com	
McKinstry Company LLC	Rich Paull John Gerrelis	850 E Spokane Falls Blvd Ste 100	Spokane WA 99202	509-747-3389	richardpau@mckinstry.com; johnge@mckinstry.com	
M.E. Uphus Construction Inc.	Mark Uphus	3939 E Boone Ave	Spokane WA 99202	509-536-4919	meuphus@yahoo.com	
Mid Mountain Boiler & Steam Inc	Steven S Bucini	6674 Sunshine Shores	Nine Mile Falls 99026	509-276-6374	midmountainboiler@gmail.com	
Millsaps Landscaping Inc	Brandon Millsap	8414 W Hallett Rd	Cheney WA 99004	509-456-3367	millsapsland@yahoo.com	
Moran Fence Inc	Jerry Stretch, Truella Stone	707 N Freya St	Spokane WA 99202	509-534-1413	moranfenceinc@aoi.com	
Mt States Electrical Contractors Inc	Dan Parent	PO Box 4325	Spokane WA 99220	509-532-0110	dan@mtnst.com	
Neeser Construction Inc	Gerald Donnelly Steve Fischetti	211 W 2nd Ave	Spokane WA 99201	509-325-0701 509-413-2099	gary@neeserinc.com; steve@neeserinc.com	
Northern Hardwood Co Inc	Diana Kurle, David Hilpert	Box 499	Deer Park WA 99006-0499	509-276-5797	dkurle@northernhardwood.com dhilper@northernhardwood.com	
North Shore Power & Lighting LLC	Ray Domas	PO Box 524	Liberty Lake WA 99019	509-924-0650	rkdomas2@aol.com	
Northwest Fence Company	Roy Masterson Lawrence Phelps	14909 E Sprague	Spokane WA 99216	509-928-8084	roy@northwestfence.com; lawerence@northwestfence.com	
Pac-4 Coatings & Waterproofing		910 North Lake Roa	Spokane Valley, WA 99212	509-928-2008	pac4coatings@yahoo.com	
Paintcrafters Plus Inc	Kraig Barnes, Craig Shepard	16010 W Jade Ln	Medical Lake, WA 99022	509-244-1000	kbarnes@paintcraftersplus.com; crshepard@paintcraftersplus.com	

Total Vendors As of 10/03/1815

Total Vendors	¥.	As of 10/03/1815		A	
105		TO FILTER BY C	# in each category USED DROP DOWN MEI		
CONTRACTOR	CONTACT	ADDRESS	CITY, STATE	Phone	EMAIL
Phalon Abatement Services Inc	Tim Phalon	PO Box 30968	Spokane WA 99223	509-928-8656	pas@air-pipe.com
Pick Electric Inc	Chris Magnuson	PO Box 6770	Spokane WA 99217-0913	509-532-1975 ex 111	chris@pickelectric.com
Pioneer Waterproofing Company Inc	Doug Flewelling	5515 E Alki Ave	Spokane Valley WA 99212	509-535-4174	d.flewelling@pioneerwp.com
Power City Electric Inc	Dan Aga, Mike Stepper, Terry Farmer	3327 E Olive			daga@powercityelectric.com; tfarmer@powercityelectric.com
Professional Piping Inc	Garry Baumgartner, Whitney Bendewald	PO Box 13714	Spokane Valley WA 99213-3714	509-869-3401	whit 357@yahoo.com
FTO IVIECTIANICAL SELVICES	Jon Vanos	PO Box 6526	Spokane WA 99217	509-483-1305	ivanos@pro-msi.com
Quality Contractors LLC	Webb French	1311 Brush Creek Rd	Deary ID 83823	208-877-1600	webb@quality-contractors.com
River City Painting of Spokane Inc	Geoff Vandenkooy	1818 W Francis #106	Spokane WA 99205	509-487-0095	rivercity.painting@yahoo.com
Riverside Painting	Toby DePaolo	430 E Nora Ave	Spokane WA 99207	509-599-8517	jamesdepaolo@hotmail.com
Rob's Demolition Inc	Rob Carper, Jay Torgerson	8420 E Woodland Park Dr	Spokane WA 99217-9235	509-928-0431	housewreck@gmail.com
R R A CO Inc	Richard Atkinson	632 N Madelia	Spokane WA 99202	509-533-9030	rracoinc@msn.com
Rubenstein's Contract Carpet LLC	Ron Theis, Buddy Ragsdale, Danylle Clutter	11303 E Montgomery Dr Ste 3	Spokane WA 99206	509-328-7220	ront@rubensteins.com; buddy@rubensteins.com; danylle@rubensteins.com
Schimmels Construction	Gary Schimmels	PO Box 8088	Spokane WA 99203-0088	509-443-2376	gschimmels@comcast.net
Sellers Masonry Inc	Vicki Sellers, Monica Sperling	PO Box 490	Otis Orchards WA 99027	509-928-6306	sellersinc@air-pipe.com
Shamrock Paving Company	Chuck Green	PO Box 19263	Spokane WA 99219-9263	509-244-2800	chuckg@shamrockpaving.us
Siemens Industry Inc	Dennis Niehenke	1282 Alturas Dr. Ste B	Moscow, ID 83843	208-310-9367	dennis.niehenke@siernens.com
Specialty Construction Systems LTD	Dan Mattern Rick Mattern Brandie Pittelko	991 N Innovation Way	Post Falls ID 83854	208-773-2933	rickm@scsystemsltd.com
Spectrum Coatings Inc	Chris or Eric Simonson	PO Box 6082	Spokane WA 99217	509-487-5509	chris@spectrumcoatings.net
Spokane Roofing Co LLC	Jeff Sitton	130 E Sprague Ave	Spokane WA 99202	509-838-8633	jsitton@roofspokane.com
S R Sicilia Inc	Gregory Sicilia	PO Box 6221	Spokane WA 99217-0904	509-466-2075	srsicilia@hotmail.com
Summit Environmental Inc	Michael Stroh	PO Box 3600	Post Falls ID 83877-0018	208-665-7060	summitenvironmental@msn.com
T & T Roofing & Sheet Metal Inc	Lee Tolley Matt Boggs	6065 E French Gulch	Coeur d'Alene ID 83814	208-664-6777	ttroof@hughes.net; mattboggs@hughes.net
Talisman Construction Service Inc	Matthew Spencer	PO Box 6189	Spokane WA 99217-0903	509-487-1292	Matt@talismanservices.com; info@talismanservices.com
3 Kings Environmental Inc	Tiffany Fields	PO Box 280	Battle Ground WA 98604	360-666-5464	tmccann@3kingsinc.com
Titan Mechanical Inc	David Roestel	PO Box 13163	Spokane Valley WA 99213	509-370-7965	titanmechanical@comcast.net
Vinny's Flooring	Vinny Saldaña	13225 N Lacey	Mead WA 99021	509-869-1087	visaldana@comcast.net
Wayne Powell Painting Inc	Roy Powell	PO Box 270	Airway Heights WA 99001	509-244-2744	WPPaint@hotmail.com
M/ I Plumbing &	Rob Watson	14421 N Hamilton	Spokane WA 99208	509-280-7023	rohwatson@wimechanical.com

#### MISC SPECIALIZED WORK

14421 N Hamilton

1822 E Fairview

1475 Valley Wind

Lane

Rob Watson

Brian Winkler

Sheila Mealey

WJ Plumbing &

Mechanical LLC

Wm Winkler Company

Wyoming Wood Floors

	MIGG SECUMENTE	DWORK			
Arrow Concrete &	Matt Risley	PO Box 11133	Spokane WA 99211-1133	509-922-7847	sales@asphaltsupply.net
Asphalt Specialities Inc					
Annhalt Draducta inc	Harold Merkley,	PO Box 7300	Spokane WA 99207-0300	509-489-9015	haroldmerkley@yahoo.com
Asphalt Products Inc	Kasey Merkley				
	Steve Burchett	1101 N Fancher Rd	Spokane Valley WA 99212	509-535-8841	sburchett@budingerinc.com
Budinger & Associates					
Inc				1	
	J	1	1	Į.	1

Spokane WA 99208

Spokane WA 99207

Missoula, MT 59804

509-280-7023

509-489-6100

406-549-1900

robwatson@wjmechanical.com

sheila@wyomingwoodfloors.com

brian@wmwinkler.com

# **Certified Directory**

As of 12/8/2022 3:26:18 PM Results filtered by search parameters

The information provided in this file is not to be used for unsolicited advertising, spam, or any other unauthorized use.

Company Name	Owner First	Owner Last	Phone	Email	Agency	<b>Certification Type</b>
Adaptive Training Solutions	Benjamin	Krauss	509-362-4946	brkrauss@hotmail.com	OMWBE	DBE
Associated Underwater Services	Nanci	Donohue	509-981-0993	nanci@ausdiving.com	OMWBE	DBE
Built Swift	Bryan	Nathan	206-300-9396	bryan@builtswift.com	OMWBE	SBE
Cathect Creative LLC, dba JSF Creative	Jane	Farstrider	253-356-5053	jane@jsfcreative.com	OMWBE	DBE
Darren Michael Stringer	Darren	Stringer	509-720-8570	darrenmobilenotary@gmail.com	OMWBE	DBE
Desautel Hege Communications, Inc	Michelle	Hege	509-444-2350	accounting@wearedh.com	OMWBE	DBE
Essayons Construction	Will	Brigman	509-607-8190	will.brigman@gmail.com	OMWBE	DBE
Fulcrum Environmental Consulting, Inc.	Ryan	Mathews	509-574-0839	info@efulcrum.net	OMWBE	SBE
Goldsmith LLC	Letitia	Wilde	509-290-6366	goldsmithtrucking2021@gmail.com	OMWBE	DBE
Gorman Preservation Associates	Jennifer	Gorman	509-279-5845	jennifer@gormanpreservation.com	OMWBE	DBE
INSIDE OUT TAXES AND ACCOUNTING LLC	Mindy	Gagne	509-822-7952	admin@insideouttaxhelp.com	OMWBE	DBE
Nicholls Kovich Engineering, PLLC	Susan	Kovich	509-921-6747	susan@nichollskovich.com	OMWBE	SBE
Occupational Health Solutions Inc	Dorthea	Walters	509-534-6820	mary.walters@ohsolutions.biz	OMWBE	DBE
Plangineering, LLC	Carole	Richardson	208-277-4600	carole@plangineering.us	OMWBE	DBE
PPC Solutions Inc	Sheila	Leslie	509-448-4277	sheila@phoenixprotectivecorp.com	OMWBE	DBE
Rockin' DW Construction, Inc.	Dan	Wilson	509-924-2466	dw@rockindw.com	OMWBE	SBE
S2M Enterprises, LLC	Sommer	Teague	509-919-3714	molly@s2cm.com	OMWBE	DBE
SHARE.FARM INC.	Vincent	Peak	509-995-8451	vince@share.farm	OMWBE	DBE
Spring Environmental, Inc.	Beth	Fifield-Hodgson	509-328-7500	corporate@springenvironmental.com	OMWBE	DBE
Still Waters Metal Fab	Tamara	Bolton	509-534-8707	tamara@stillwatersmf.com	OMWBE	DBE
U-PC Wholesale, LLC	Jay	Thayer	509-534-3005	jay@upcwholesale.com	OMWBE	DBE
Vertical Options LLC	Keely	Friesen	509-951-6416	keely@voelevator.com	OMWBE	SBE
West Star Construction of Spokane	Jacqueline	Etter	509-994-2527	westarbiodiesel@gmail.com	OMWBE	DBE

RFP 14-2223

1

JOB ORDER CONTRACTING SERVICES **EXHIBIT D** 

# RFP EXHIBIT D PREVAILING WAGE INFORMATION

State of Washington
Department of Labor & Industries
Prevailing Wage Section – Telephone 360-902-5335
P.O. Box 44540, Olympia, WA 98504-4540

Washington State Prevailing Wage
The PREVAILING WAGES are available at lni.wa.gov On public works projects,
worker's wage and benefit rates must add to not less than this total. A brief description of
overtime calculation requirements are provided on the Benefit Code Key.

# RFP Exhibit E

# Sample of previous twelve month Annual Capital Projects

This information is provided only to assist respondents in understanding the nature of the work they may be required to perform.

Site	Project Name	Estimate Budget	Budget Source
Arlington	Install new EMS controls	\$150,000	ACP
Audubon	Install parking lot improvements	\$140,000	ACP
Audubon	Install multi-media system	\$85,000	ACP
Balboa	Capital improvements to grounds	\$35,000	ACP
Bancroft (TCS)	Capital improvements to grounds	\$25,000	ACP
Bemiss	Reconstruct asphalt parking lot	\$200,000	ACP
Bemiss	Painting to extend useful life	\$50,000	ACP
Browne	Construct secure point of entry	\$100,000	ACP
Bryant	Reconstruct north asphalt parking lot	\$100,000	ACP
Chase	HVAC system upgrades	\$60,000	ACP
Cooper	Upgrade intercom system	\$100,000	ACP
District Admin Building	Parking lot improvements	\$200,000	ACP
Dist. Admin Building	Reconstruct asphalt parking lot	\$160,000	ACP
Dist Admin Building	Upgrade boiler	\$100,000	ACP
Dist Admin Building	Capital improvements to elevator	\$100,000	ACP
Dist Admin Building	Upgrade audio visual technology in selected spaces	\$120,000	ACP
Ferris	Reconstruct asphalt parking lot	\$160,000	ACP
Ferris	Exterior lighting improvements	\$64,000	ACP
Finch	Select sidewalk improvements	\$25,000	ACP
Finch	Capital improvements to grounds and play structure	\$25,000	ACP
Garfield	Install new sound system in gym and multi-purpose rm	\$90,000	ACP
Garry	Convert room for functional purposes	\$150,000	ACP
Grant	Capital improvements to grounds	\$50,000	ACP
Grant	Parking lot lighting improvements	\$50,000	ACP
Holmes	Capital improvements to interior	\$125,000	ACP
Hutton	Capital improvements to roofing	\$50,000	ACP
Hutton	Select sidewalk improvements	\$75,000	ACP
Indian Trail	Select sidewalk improvements	\$25,000	ACP
ITSC	Install new fiber cable to warehouse	\$50,000	ACP
Jefferson	Select sidewalk improvements	\$110,000	ACP
Lewis & Clark	Install gym curtain	\$75,000	ACP
Lewis & Clark	Capital improvements to roofing in select areas	\$450,000	ACP

Libby	Capital improvements to fencing	\$45,000	ACP
Lincoln Heights	Painting to extend useful life, Phase 2	\$50,000	ACP
Logan	Install hand washing stations	\$75,000	ACP
Longfellow	Select sidewalk improvements	\$135,000	ACP
Madison	Capital improvements to selected roofing	\$75,000	ACP
MAP Program	Capital improvements to grounds	\$75,000	ACP
Montessori	Capital improvements to roofing	\$90,000	ACP
Montessori	HVAC upgrades	\$100,000	ACP
Mulllan Road	Capital improvements to interior	\$75,000	ACP
North Central	Construct of a storage building	\$350,000	ACP
North Central	Capital improvements to interior	\$30,000	ACP
Regal	Selected sidewalk improvements	\$125,000	ACP
Regal	Capital improvements to interior	\$45,000	ACP
Ridgeview	Construct single secure point of entry	\$100,000	ACP
Rogers	Install new clock system	\$150,000	ACP
Shadle	Capital improvements to interior	\$35,000	ACP
Scott	Reconstruct asphalt parking lot	\$125,000	ACP
Scott	Install new signage	\$50,000	ACP
Stevens	Reconstruct parking lot	\$150,000	ACP
Stevens	Painting to extend useful life	\$50,000	ACP
Support Services Center	Install coiling doors	\$75,000	ACP
Various	Install snow guards at roofs	\$180,000	ACP
Various	Capital improvements to irrigations systems	\$120,000	ACP
Various	Install sensor faucets	\$80,000	ACP
Various	Purchase and install new emergency generator	\$200,000	ACP
Various	Install water bottle filling stations	\$80,000	ACP
Various	Install electronic mixing valves	\$70,000	ACP
Westview	Select sidewalk improvements	\$75,000	ACP
Whitman	Select flooring improvements	\$50,000	ACP
Wilson	Upgrade windows, Phase 2	\$250,000	ACP
Woodridge	Capital improvements to playground asphalt	\$30,000	ACP

# SPOKANE WASHINGTON JOB ORDER CONTRACTING SERVICES

# **EXHIBIT F**

# RFP EXHIBIT F SPS WEBSITE HOMEPAGE SCREEN PRINT

